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FILED
MAR 25 2015
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™ THE EIgh.... JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF. () v 4.,

fR'iUKﬁ.a.._.ﬁl.a.uqhm....

Petitioner,
V. PETITION FOR WRIT
OF HABEAS CORPUS
) P (POSTCONVICTION)
Waeden Rore. Bokee. ...
Respondent.
INSTRUCTIONS:

(1) This petition must be legibly handwritten or typewritten, signed by the petitioner and verified.

(2) Additional pages are not permitted except where noted or with/respect to the facts which you rely upon to
support your grounds for relief. No citation of authorities need be furnished. If briefs or arguments are submitted,
they should be submitted in the form of a separate memorandum.

(3) If you want an attorney appointed, you must complete the Affidavit in Support of Request to Proceed in
Forma Pauperis. You must have an authorized officer at the prison complete the certificate as to the amount of
money and securities on deposit to your credit in any account in the institution.

(4) You must name as respondent the person by whom you are confined or restrained. If you are in a specific
institution of the Department of Corrections, name the warden or head of the institution. If you are not in a specific
institution of the Department but within its custody, name the Director of the Départment of Corrections.

(5) You must include all grounds or claims for relief which ydu may Jhave regarding your conviction or sentence.
Failure to raise all grounds in this petition may preclude you from filing future petitions challenging your conviction
and sentence, ‘

(6) You must altege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition you file seeking relief from any conviction
or sentence. Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your petition to be dismissed. If
your petition contains a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, that claim will operate to waive the attomey-
client privilege for the proceeding in which you claim your counsel was ineffective.

(7) When the petition is fully completed, the original and one copy must be filed with the clerk of the state
district court for the county in which you were convicted. One copy must be mailed to the respondent, one copy to
the Attorney General’s Office, and one copy to the district attorney of the county in which you were convicted or to
the original prosecutor if you are challenging your original conviction or sentence, Copies must conform in all
particulars to the original submitted for filing.

—

»

PETITION

1. Name of institution and county in which you are presently imprisoned or where and how you are presently

restrained of your liberty: E\%B‘hﬁt?{‘\«mﬂ,m\llﬁ?xmCmmjﬂj;,Gjm*t«l‘?l‘vmﬂf!“ ........

2. Name and location of court which entered the judgment of conviction under attack: EJ%\\“%hﬁ“d"hmvk
S P i
I?.l.s\.’r.t‘.d’...C!}.u.(?‘.t,...ﬁlo.\n?x.f.&u.(ﬁtﬁ..blf..\w. o, Repic 3. Honarnidle. Inngles.. Reonden......
3. Date of judgment of conviction: \D'L-‘!"Q\D‘T’L

4. Case number: CQ'.DL{C‘S‘—[ .................................................................
5. (a) Length of sentence: L\QE,

..............................................................................

04C204957
PWHC
Petition for Writ of Haheas Corpus

T

N ——— -
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11
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24
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26
27

28

If “yes," list crime, case number and sentence being served at this ME! ...

7. Nature of offense involved in conviction being challenged: ...

8. What was your plea? (check one)

(a) Not guilty \/

(b) Guilty ........

(c) Guilty but mentally ill ........

(d) Nolo contendere ........

9. If you entered a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill to one count of an indictment or information, and a
plea of not guilty to another count of an indictment or information, or if a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill was

NEROHALE, ZIVE BELAILS: oo.e.eoceiiiisys e e

10. If you were found guilty or guilty but mentally ilt after a plea of not guilty, was the finding made by: (check one)

(a) Jury ..X...
(b} Judge without a jury ........
11. Did you testify at the trial? Yes ........ No /

12. Did you appea! from the judgment of conviction? Yes ..Ao

13. If you did appeal, answer the following:

(a) Name of court: SUPNMECD“?'\.'Q"LM"LU"NQ\"}’)%

(c) Result: 0(‘df,d‘ OS\" P\“"\I‘Mﬂn(_{_,

(d) Date of result: N\ﬂ“d’}\l,‘l{)\"\

{Attach copy of order or decision, if available.)
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16

17
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19
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21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

14. 1f you did not appeal, explain briefly why you did not: ..... M/A .......................................................................

15. Other than a direct appeal from the judgment of conviction and sentence, have you previously filed any
petitions, applications or motions with respect to this judgment in any court, state or federal? Yes ........ No ‘(‘

16. If your answer to No. 15 was “yes,” give the following information:

(2) (1) NAITLE OF COUTL: .ceiemreniticiiitet it rssb i syt e e S8 S 08

(2} NATUTE OF PrOCEEMAING 1. voerureecrreeriarersrisiraarssssssssrssessem et sessess i b s bR 818 e s 00

(3) GEOUNAS FRISEA: .. rvvveeermrermerritsorroseserrsssrssssas st e R oS8 80 R0

(4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or motion? Yes ........ NO e
(S RESUIL L.oicurvererininsi sttt
(6) Date OF FESULL ..vo.cieieeeirer ettt e

(7) If known, citations of any written apinion or date of orders entered pursuant to such result:

(b) As to any second petition, application or motion, give the same information:
(1) NEME OF COUR: «.oovviriirneaniremnirereesmsas s st sasnss st sbbsasas s memones
(2) Nature of proceeding: ...t
(3) Grounds raiSed: ...c.covevrccecciiiiisisi s e i
(4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or motion? Yes ........ No ...
(S RESUM: ..ot s
(6) DAt OF FESUIL: oocvvviiiereeres s et sbs st

(7) If known, citations of any written opinion or date of orders entered pursuant to such result:

(c) As to any third or subsequent additional applications or motions, give the same information as above, list

them on a separate sheet and attach.

App. 1277
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14

15
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17

18

19
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22

23

24

25

26

27

28

.

(d) Did you appeal to the highest state or federal court having jurisdiction, the result or action taken on any

petition, application or motion?

(1) First petition, application or motion? Yes \/ No........
Citation or date of deciSION: ....cccuiecorsreneeieeei e s

(2) Second petition, application or motion? Yes ........ NoO .ve
Citation or date of deCiSION: .....covererceererece s e

(3) Third or subsequent petitions, applications or motions? Yes ........ No ........
Citation or date of deCiSION: ....ccvvirceecre v

(e) If you did not appeal from the adverse action on any petition, application or motion, explain briefly why you
did not. (You must relate specific facts in response to this question. Your response may be included on paper which
is 8 172 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in
TETIEHRL v vvevvseesssseeesesese e seceeeb e 818 L 8 L RS R

17. Has any ground being raised in this petition been previously presented to this or any other court by way of
petition for habeas corpus, motion, application or any other postconviction proceeding? If so, identify:

(a) Which of the grounds is the same: ND'

(b) The proceedings in which these grounds Were FaiSed: ...t e

(c) Briefly explain why you are again raising these grounds. (You must relate specific facts in response to this
question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 1/2 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your
response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in [Ength.) oo

18. Ifany of the grounds listed in Nos. 23(a), (b), (c) and (d), or listed on any additional pages you have attached,
were not previously presented in any other court, state or federal, list briefly what grounds were not so presented,
and give your reasons for not presenting them. (You must relate specific facts in response to this question. Your
response may be included on paper which is 8 1/2 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not

exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in JeNgth.) et
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19. Are you filing this petition more than | year following the filing of the judgment of conviction or the filing
of a decision on direct appeal? If so, state briefly the reasons for the delay. (You must relate specific facts in
response to this question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 1/2 by 11 inches attached to the

petition. Your response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.) l\lD ................................

20. Do you have any petition or appeal now pending in any court, either state or federal, as to the judgment
under attack? Yes ........ No..X..
If yes, state what court and the Case MUMDBET: .......cooveirmrimiieii s o s b

21. Give the name of each attorney who represented you in the proceeding resulting in your conviction and on

directappeat_0ied. Counsed - Odvalde Fumo and_Dustia Mascello ...
AWNWCDMS&\h\illaam&ama%@

22. Do you have any future sentences to serve after you complete the sentence imposed by the judgment under
attack? Yes ........ No .¥....

If yes, specify where and when it is to be served, if YOU KNOW: v

23. State concisely every ground on which you claim that you are being held unlawfully. Summarize briefly the
facts supporting each ground. If necessary you may attach pages stating additional grounds and facts

supporting same.
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WHEREFORE, petitioner prays that the coun grant petitioner relief to which petitioner may be entitled in this
proceeding. il
EXECUTED at ESP on the 2= day of the month of %\... of the year 2215

/. .

%};&L}é;'é};;{{{;'on;;"""' |

‘E_.Sgi?g...,.e,.o.‘m.x&%?&,.ghj Nevedo, $%300- R84
Address

......... Pros P80
Signature of attorney (if any)

Address
VERIFICATION
Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that the undersigned is the petitioner named in the foregoing

petition and knows the contents thereof; that the pleading is true of the undersigned’s own knowledge, except as to
those matters stated on information and belief, s to such matters the undersigned believes them to be true.

[
Peti :

Pelifienes. 1o goper. Poson
Attorney for petitioner

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

addressed to:

Reoe. Bakec, (10arden).

Respondent prison or jail official

R0 ek VAR L el BYER 600
Address
E\l(){@”NQ{adxﬁc\j(‘J]"lc\%c\

Attorney General

Heroes’ Memorial Building

Capito]l Complex

Carson City, Nevada 89710

Sheven Wel

e A M ALY
District Attorney of County of Conviction

200, Haaous. Ay Lol B0% LY. NG B1NBS

Address j

e of Petitioner

-10-
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"~ AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding pe;‘qsm at

Tor et of Holsas Comu( ( Poxt - (\on\nc’nmﬁ

(Title of Document)

filed in District Court Case number (2 61457

E‘/ Does not contain the social security number of any person.
-OR-
O Contains the social security number of a person as required by:

A. A specific state or federal law, to wit:

(State specific law)
_or-

B. For the administration of a public program or for an application
for a federal or state grant.

%/ff’f/—f 2-22- 201
/S:gnabﬁre Date

Q) CL\‘P ol mm\\?r’

Print Name

P(’;H'H onge

Title
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_CASE: 04015160 ----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: 247730
-~ DATE: 8/11/04 =-==---------- POLICE REPORT-----=-=-=-=----- PAGE: 3
TIME: 8:26 = =-===-===--= NARRATIVE PORTION------------ OF: 4

................................................................................

................................................................................

ON JULY 1, 2004 I COMPLETED A PROCESSING REQUEST AND FOREWARDED SAME TO !
THE IDENTIFICATION BUREAU REQUESTING THE GUNS RECOVERED IN THIS CASE BE CHECKED
FOR LATENT PRINTS. CSIﬂBRﬁDEﬁERGCESSEE#EHE&@BNS%AND$0NLE&QNE«NGNEHC®MPARHBLEJ
PRINTwWASﬁL@CA?ED SEE HER' REPORT FOR DETAILS.

I ALSO COMPLETED A REQUEST FOR GUNS AND BULLET FRAGMENTS BE SENT TO THE
LAS VEGAS METROPCLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT FORENSIC LABORATORY FCR EXAMINATION, I
REQUESTED THE BULLET FRAGMENTS BE COMPARED TO THE GUNS RECOVERED. I ALSO
REQUESTED THAT IT BE DETERMINED WHAT TYPE OF GUN THE BULLET FRAGMENTS WERE
FIRED FROM. ’ . '

ON JULY 2, 2004, I RESPONDED TO THE VICTIM'S RESIDENCE. JENNIFER DENNIS
CONTACTED ME AND SAID THAT SHE HAD LOCATED A BULLET HOLE IN THE KITCHEN FLOOR
WHERE HER HUSBAND, IVAN YOUNG, WAS SHOT. I EXAMINED THE FLOOR AND SAW WHAT
APPEARED TO BE A BULLET IMPRESSION. THE BULLET IMPRESSION WAS LOCATED WHERE I
INITIALLY SAW THE POOL OF BLOOD ON THE NIGHT OF THE INCIDENT. I LATER REQUESTED
A CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATOR RESPONDED TO THE VICTIMS RESIDENCE AND TAKE PICTURES
OF THE BULLET IMPRESSION. CSI FISHER RESPONDED AND TOOK THE PHOTOS.

ON JULY 20, 2004, I REQUESTED THE FILM IN THE CAMERA RECOVERED DURING THE
SEARCH WARRANT BE DEVELOPED. I WAS ATTEMPTING TO LOCATE SOME PICTURES OF
SLAUGHTER AND HIS ACCOMPLICE. NO PHOTOS OF THE NATURE WERE LOCATED.

* DURING THE INITIAL INVESTIGATION OFFICERS RECEIVED INFORMATION THAT A
SUBJECT IDENTIFIED AS ERRICK HAWKINS FIT THE DISCRIPTION OF THE SUSPECTS
IDENTIFIED DURING THE ROBBERY. ’

I LATER CONTACTED HAWKINS AND SPOKE WITH HIM ABOUT WHERE A WAS ON JUNE 26,
2004. HAWKINS TOLD ME THAT HE WAS AT A FAMILY GET TOGETHER AT HIS AUNTS
RESIDENCE. HE FURNISHED ME WITH HIS AUNTS NAME, URSULIA CHRISTMAS, HER ADDRESS,
2301 MAVERICK ST. HE ALSO GAVE ME HER PHONE NUMBER, 638-9536, SO I COULD VERIFY
HIS STORY. HAWKINS DID NOT SPEARK WITH A JAMAICAN ACCENT.

I CALLED CHRISTMAS AND SPOKE WITH HER. SHE TOLD ME THAT HAWKINS WAS AT HER
RESIDENCE ON SATURDAY, JUNE 26, 2004. SHE SAID THAT HE REMAINED AT HER
RESIDENCE UNTIL EARLY SUNDAY MORNING.

DURING THE INVESTIGATION THE NORTH LAS VEGAS DETENTION CENTER MONITORED
SLAUGHTER'S PHONE CALLS. DETENTICN DETECTIVE TODD WILLIAMS SUPPLIED ME WITH THE
CALLS MADE BY SLAUGHTER. DURING THESE CALLS SLAUGHTER TALKED WITH TIFFANY

- JOHNSON. DURING THE CALLS WITH JOHNSON, SLAUGHTER TOLD HER TO TELL THE POLICE
HE CAME TO PICK HER UP AT 7 PM. DURING CALLS MADE TO AN UNIDENTIFIED MALE HE
SAID THAT HE WAS GOING TO WAIT FOR A GOOD OFFER FROM THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY
BEFORE TAKING A DEAL. DURING THE PHONE CALLS HE TALKS ABCUT THE GUNS THAT WERE
FOUND AND HOW TO CREATE AN ALIBI TO EXPLAIN WHERE HE WAS ON THE NIGHT OF THE
ROBBERY .

. DURING THE INVESTIGATION I CONTECTED ONE OF JOHNSON'S CO-WORKERS, JEFF
ARBUCKLE, AT ELDORODO CLEANERS. ONE JUNE 26, 2004, ARBUCKLE SAID THAT HE WAS
WORKING WHEN JOHNSON GOT OFF WORK. HE SAID WHEN HE LEFT WORK IT WAS 7:15 PM AND

records bureau procesped gser no | detective bureau processed gser ne

SCARFF/DENISE 1259 !

supervisor approving ser no ! officer reportlng ser no

FITZ/HOWARD DOUGLAS 0652 | PRIETQ/JESUS 0674
\
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CASE: 04015160 ----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: 247730
,DATE: 8/11/04 --=---mmmmmn-- POLICE REPORT------~===uc== PAGE: 4
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JOHNSCON WAS STILL WAITING OUTSIDE THE BUSINESS FOR HER RIDE.
CCPIES OF THE PHONE CALLS WERE MADE AND FORWARDED TO THE DISTRICT
ATTORNEY'S OFFICE.

records bureau processed ser no ! detective bureau processed ser no
SCARFF/DENISE 1256 !

supervisor approving ser no ! officer reporting ser no
FITZ/HOWARD DOUGLAS 0652 ! PRIETO/JESUS 0674
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A " Ivan Young
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L SRS

DR#04-15160 7/15/2004

The date is July 1, year is 2004. Interview is being conducted with Ivan Young.
Case number is 04-15160.

Okay. Hey Ivan, why don’t you tell me about the incident that happened over to
your house on the 26th of June.

While I was working in my garage, and two guys came up and held their guns on
me. And tried to go into the house and pulled their guns on my wife, my son, my
nephew and two other of my friends and just holded us in the house and frying to
get money from us. And you know attemnpting to kill us and stuff. And then they
shot me you know in the face and you know then they took off. I have never seen

the guys in my life you know.
Okay hey, when the guys came in your garage, you know earlier I had talked to

you a few days ago, and you — I showed you some photos.

Uh huh.

And you ID one of the persons from those photos. Is that one of the guys that had
the guns that came into your garage?

Yes.

Okay. And you had — the guns that they were carrying, can you describe the

guns?

One was like a little small black revolver, like a wood handle grip on it, and it

was round — it was like rounder. And then one was a 380, kind of a round barrel
onit.

‘What color was it?

Silver. 1know it wasn’t chrome. Iknow it was silver, because they stuck it right
in front of my face you know. And I know they had a longer gun, I don’t know
what it was though.

Was it a big gun or a smaller gun?

Nabh, I think it was just like a nine millimeter, you know like automatic. //
Didn’t you just see it too clear? 7
I didn’t see that one too clear, because they just kept on sticking the other two In

front of my face.
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Ivan Young

Q.

A,

o0 @R

DR#04-15160 7/15/2004

Okay. What did the guys say when they were inside your house? Do you
remember them saying anything to you?

Like just tying me up. Telling that they are going to kill me if I don’t give them
no money and stuff. : %ﬂkﬁemgm@@mﬁﬂzﬁguyswlmgmbommmwa&&ﬁm
orgetibackatothe ﬁmmteillgible), bewauserhe

(unintelligible). e-wa
didretikesithorsimainierica. “SHHE6

Okay, so anything else you can tell me? Is that pretty much it?
Yeah.
QOkay, all right, this concludes the interview.

App. 1364



A

29

)

App. 1365




- O R 2 A
BOGKING NAME: SLAUGHTER RICKIE
TRUE NAME:
AKAH: SLAUGHTER/RICIIE LAMODNT AKA 82;
AKA £3: AKA #4:
SEX: Male RACE: PHOTO DATE: 06 /29 1 2004
HAIR- Black EYES: Brown PHOTQ TIMNE: 0 : 47
HEIGHT: &09" WEIGHT: 180 PHOTO NUMBER: 30686732
BLD:; Mediumn VP Dark
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'~ _NORTHLAS VEGAS POLICE
1O wiThESS: WITNESS‘ PHOTO LINEUP IDENTIFICATION Case # 04-15160

. If you have previously seen one of more of the persens in the line up in regards to the crime in question, place a circle
] Mm”“d the appropriate number cerresponding to the number of the person In the line up. Place your Inftlals next to the

® " dircled number,
2. Complete any additional comments
3. Then sign your name and fili in the date and the time.

ADDITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS:

&gmm of Officer Signature of Witness Date & Time

)
Signature of Officer Witness Name Printed

App. 1368




.. NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE
(0 WITNESS: WITNESS PHOTO LI.NEUP IDENTIFICATION Case# 04-15160

I If you have previousty seen one or more of the persons in the line up in regards to the crime in question, place a circle
\ mmund the appropriate number corresponding to the number of the parson in the line up. Place your Initials next to the

» Zircled rumber.
2. Complete any additional comments
3 Then sign your name and fill in the date and the time.

ADDITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS:

E-irﬁ;n‘m of Cfficer Signature of Witness Date & Time
U
Signature of Officer Wiiness Name Printed

\
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5 PHOTO SPREAD . ;i OFFENSEANCIDENT No, ' :-)“
WITNESS: PLEASE READ THESE INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY 2. cANOTES space. e briefly howhsterswhien you saw or mel pursonds) you

Poaitions of persons in this photo apresd sre nusmbored et to righl, buginning with idertifind.

Numiber One (1) on your laft. 3. #you nevor have waen any person in this ine-ug, write your initals in the

1. ¥ prodously you have sesn ong of mors of the parssna in this photo spread, “NONE OF THE ABOVE" spacs.

writs youn tritinls In the “INFTIALS™ specea(s) beyide the photn{s) of the paryon(s) &, Blgn your name in the “VIEWED BY" spacs, and il in the time and date apaces.
you have sean, . §. Thon hand this phato sgresd o the oficet in charge,

#2 PERSON #3 PERSON
 paTE DATE

'INITIALS INITIALS

NOTES NOTES

#4 PERSON

OATE

INITIALS

NOTES

TIME PHOTO SPREAD SHOWN
AGENCY DATE PHOTO SPREAD SHOWN
OFFICER SIEnstura of witness to this viewing:
WITNESS .

#8 PERSON

DATE

INITIALS

NOTES

NONE OF THE ABOVE

VIEWED BY

DATE OF OFFENSE

DATE
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. " NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE =
L. WITNESS PHOTO LINEUP IDENTIFICATION Case # 04-15160
. TO WITNESS:

1. i you have previously seen one or mote of the persons in the line up in regards to the crime in question, place 8 circle
| ¢#mround the appropriate number coresponding to the number of the persan in the line up. Place your infllals next to the
" Tdncled number. .

P2 Complete any additianal comments
3 Then sign your name and fill in the date and the time,

i
i
[l

#4 #5 #6

ADDITIONAL WITNESS COMMENTS:

Siﬁm& of Officer Signature of Witness Date & Time
) '
Signature of Offlcer Witness Name Printed
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CASE: 04015160 ----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: 250183
° DATE: 9/24/04 @ ~-cceceenoon.- POLICE REPORT~------------. PAGE: 4
TIME: 10:18 = =--ee---a-—- NARRATIVE PORTION--~=---«--- OF: 5

DURING MY INVESTIGATICN I LEARNED THAT RICKIE SLAUGHTER WAS MAKING SEVERAL
PHONE CALLS TO A SUBJECT LATER IDENTIFIED AS JACQUAN RICHARL, ALSO KNOW AS
MACK. DURING THESE CALL3 SLAUGHTER AND RICHARD TALKED ABOUT THE ROBBERY, HOW
SLAUGHTER COULD CREATE AN ALIBI AND VARIOUS ASPECTS OF THE IKCIDENT. 1 MADE
SEVERAL ATTEMPTS TO CONTACT RICHARD DURING THE INVESTIGATICN, BJT I WAS NOT
ABLE TO DO SO.

PHOTO LINE UPS OF RICHARD WERE MADE AND SHOWN TO ALL CF THE VICTIMS. NONE
OF THE VICTIMS WERE ABLE TO IDENTIFY RICHARD AS A SUSPECT.

I LEARNED THAT RICHARD EAD A WARRANT THROUGH PARCLE ANL' PROBATION. I
CONTACTED PAROLE AND PROBATICN AND ASKED THAT I BE NOTIFIED IF RICHARD WAS
ARRESTED FPOR THE WARRANT.

ON SEPTEMBER 17, 2004, 1 WAS CONTACTED EBEY THE CLARK CCUNTY DETENTION
CENTER (CCDC}, THEY TOLD ME THAT RICHARD HAD BEEN ARRESTED FOR THE ABOVE LISTED
WARRANT .

I WENT TO CCDC AND CONTACTED RICHARD FOR AN INTERVIEW. HE WAS ADVISED OF
HIS MIRANDA RIGHTS AND DURING A TAPED INTERVIEW TOLD ME WERT HE KNEW ABOUT THE
ROBBERY. RICHARD SRID THAT SLAUGHTER TOLD HIM THAT HE COMMITTED THE ROBBERY.
RICHARD SAID THAT HE WENT OVER TO SLAUGHTER'S RESIDENCE ON THE NIGHT OF THE
ROBBERY. RICHARD SAID THAT HE GOT TO HIS RESIDENCE AFTER 7 THAT NIGHT, BUT HE
POESN'T KNOW THE EXARCT TIME.

RICHARD WENT ON TO TELL ME VARIQOUS DETAILS OF THE CRIME. DETAILS NOT
RELERSED TO THE PUBLIC. RICHARD SAID THAT SLAUGHTER TOLD HJM THE ROBBERY WENT
BAD AND SLAUGHTER HAD TQ SHOOT SOMEONE. SLAUGHTER TOLD HIM APOUT ROBBING TWO

ERSONS THAT CAME OVER TO THE RESIDENCE DURING THE RCOBBERY. RICHARD SAID THAT

E WAS TOLD ABOUT SLAUGHTER GETTING THE CREDIT CARD AND ABOUT GETTING SOME
MONEY FROM A VICTIM WHC WAS COMING IN AS THEY ATTEMPTED TO LEAVE. DURING THE
NTZRVIEW I HAD TO STOP DURING INMATE DINNER SERVING. THIS WAS ABOUT 4:30. I
RETURNED A COUPLE OF HOURS LATER AND CONTINUED THE INTERVIEW GETTING VARIOUS
DETAILS. DURING THE INTERVIEW RICHARC IDENTIFIED SLAUGHTER &§ ACCOMPLICE.
RICHARD SAID THAT SLAUGHTER TTOLD HIM IT WAS LITTLE MARV A DONNR GANG MEMBER. TO
CONFIRM SLAUGHTER'S IDENTITY T SKOWED RICHARD A PHOTO LINE UE THAT CONTAINED
SLAUGHTER. HE POQINTED TQ SLARUGHTER. I DID NOT ASK KIM TO IRITIAL THE LINE UP.
SEE INTERVIEW FOR DETAILS.

THRQUGH FURTHER INVESTIGATION LITTLE MARV WAS IDENTIFIED AS MARVIN
ROBINSON A DONNA STREET GANG MEMBER. I OBTAINED A PHOTO OF ROBINSON FROM A
PREVIOUS NORTH LAS VEGAS JAIZ BOOKING. I THEN CREATED A PHOTO LINE UP WHICH
CONTAINED ROBINSON AND FIVE DTHER BLACK MALES SIMILAR IN APPEAFANCE.

ON SEPTEMBER 21, 2004 I WENT TO THE PRELIMINARY HEARING FOR RICKIE
SLAUGHTER, AT THE NORTH LAS VEGAS JUSTICE COURT. THERE I CONTACTED IVAN YOUNG,
JENNIFER DENNIS, ARRON DENNI3, JOEY PASADA AND RYAN JOHN.

AFTER THE HEARING I SHOWED BACH OF THE VICTIMS THE FHOTO LINE UPS THAT I
HEAD FREPARED. YOUNG LOOCKED AT THE LINE UP AND SAID HE WAS JNSUPE, HE DEBATED

records bureau processed ser no ! detective bureau processed ser no
1

superviscr approving ser no | officer reporting Bexr no

EANKS/ROBERT EDWARD JR 08858 | PRIETQ/JESUS 0674
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AFFIDAVIT OF TIFFANY HOLLY (“*JOHNSON™. ESQ. - .

STATEOFNEVADA™ ')
) 58.

COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, TIFFANY HOLLY (*JOHNSON™)., swears under penalty of perjury that the following

assertions are true of e own personal knowledge: -

1. That on June 26, 2004, | was employed at Eldorado Cleaners locétéd at'_‘Bor.lanza
end Nellis,

2. That on June 26, 2004, my shift on that day ended at 7:00 p.m. _

3. That on June 26, 2004, Rickie Slaughter picked me up sometime between 7:00 -
7:15 p.m., but prior to 7:30 p.m. I know this to be true because Rickie Slaughter
had never previously picked me up so Jate, and if he had picked mé up as late as
7:30 p.m., I would have remembered because it would have been é‘o ﬁn'.u-sua].

q, That on or around June 28-29, of 2004, after a raid and search warrant e;{écution
on my residence, I was taken from the shower naked and left outside with just a
blanket to cover up with. I was not permitted to put on clothes until jL;St prior to
being taken to the North Las Vegas Police Station. I was then han’dddff;ad and
teken to the North Las Vegas Police Station to be questioned by Detective Prieto.

5. During this June 28-29, 2004, interrogation, I repeatedly told Detective Prieto
that I did not have any knowledge of the crime he was investigating and that to
the best of my knowledge Rickie Slaughter picked me up at the normal time after
I get out of work around 7:00 p.m. to 7:15 p.m. - e - _'

6.- During the June 28-29, 2004, interview ] felt that Detective Prieto pféSsiJred me
and became aBusive and angry when 1 told him that to the best"‘ofli-éc_pllection,
Rickie Slaughter picked me up after work at the normal time betwgén -;7:00' p.m.
and 7:15 p.m., he [Detective Preito] repeatedly asserted that I was lying and said
it was 7:30 p.m. o |

7. Subsequent to the initial interview, Detective Prieto called me and fo'l_c_l, me that I
was lying and could be arrested. [ felt that if I did not tell Detect_ivé Pﬁét'o what

t

VACRIMIN AL DEFENSE CLIENTS\CRIMMAL CLIENTS\ISLAUGHTER, RICKIEWitncssesiA Ridavii of TifTuny Johnson reganding
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he wanted to hear that I would be arrested and lose the ability to be a mother to

During this subsequent interrogation, 1 felt pressure to say whatever Detective
Prieto wanted me to say and based on that I told him what he wanted to hear to
avoid being taken to jail. Specifically, I felt pressured to change what I bélieved
to be true that Rickie Slaughter picked me up from work June 26, 2004, between
7:00 p.m. - 7:15 p.m., to what Detective Prieto told me I had to sdy, which was

that Rickie Slaughter picked me up at 7:30 p.m.

EXECUTED this: 24, dayof _FEBRUAZY 20,

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before m v FUBLG
2011, KRISTINE TACATA
- Y. BTATE OF NEVADA - DOUNTY OF CLARK
» MY APPOINTMENT EXP. OG TDBER 23, 2011
~ No: 03-84813-1

NOTARY PUBLIC

YACRIMMINAL DEFENSE CLIENTS\CRIMINAL CLIENTS\SLAUGHTER, RICKIE\Witnesses\A fiidavit of Tiffany _].nhnsnnAreg.m'rling
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Rickie Slaughter | 1
Case # C204957

Nevada Investigative Group, LLC

PILBA41496
8414 W, Farm Rd #180-303
Las Vegas, NV 89131
(702) 296-3003
Case # C204957 / Rickie Slaughter AttorneyIClient
Dates: 02/01/11 Privilege
Times: 6:00pm
' Location: Telephonic (NS
Persons Involved: Tiffany Johnson
N
Las Vegas, Nevada
Investigator Craig Retke

Synopsis:
On the above date and time, I conducted a telephonic interview with Tiffany Johnson as she was at her house
located at the above address.

Details:
I called Tiffany Johnson on her cellular phone and I identified myself as a private investigator appointed to
Rickie Slaughter’s case. Johnson was very apprehensive initially but somewhat cooperative.

I asked Johnson if she would be willing to talk to me regarding the night of Slaughter’s arrest and her arrest for
Q}jg:ﬁﬁfﬁﬁrg’?ﬁfﬂmi&?@ﬁi&ﬁ She stated she wanted to put all of those events behind her. I asked her if she was
still living on Greymouth Street and she said she was and was living there with her husband of five years.

g‘ffﬁhn,son;woixl‘d?h’ﬁfftﬁlk”ﬁﬁﬁﬁh‘vé}‘;aggociﬁtiﬁ‘rf@ith%Slﬁ’ﬁ@h_’}gg} 1 asked her if she talked to Slaughter frequently
and she said she talks to him occasionally.

Johnson explained she wanted to talk about howiNort: LasiVegas: Police. Départment.(NLVPDJ Detective
Prieto treated her before the last trial date. Johnson stated he was continually calling her on her cell phone and
stopping by her house to talk to her. Johnson stated‘DetsPridto: wisvery adamant:that:Slatghter was'a bad
,lmggi\yx@ﬁéfc_’di_id;td"'get;:ﬁké“ﬁfﬁﬂ?ﬂiéfﬁ&"é'éty

Johnson further explained that Det. Prieto was making her husband mad by continually bothering her. I asked
Johnson if she would write down exactly what Det. Prieto was saying to her and I would pick the statement up
. 1

N

App. 1377



from her at her house. I asked her to call me on my cell when I could pick it up tomorrow, 02/02/11. Johnson
stated she would call me.

Craig Retke ,
Nevada Investigative Group LLC
PILB #1496

App. 1378
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CRSE: 04015160 ----NORTH LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPARTMENT---- REF: 246198
DATE: 6/29/04 ~-==----------- POLICE REPORT----------~-=-- PAGE: 2
5. TIME: 7:46 = s-se-ess----- NARRATIVE PORTION-----=~==~--- OF: 2

...........................................................................

S T e R R R

ON SATURDAY 06726704:°A% ABOUT 1911 HOURS OFFICER M. HOYT 1334 AND SEVERAL
OTHER OFFICERS WERE DISPATCHED TO 2612 GLORY VIEW REFERENCE A SHOOTING VICTIM.

I RESPONDED AS WELL TC ASSIST.

WHEN I ARRIVED, I ASSISTED IN SECURING NITNESSES AND THE SCENE. ONCE
EVERYTHING WAS UNDER CONTROJ. I WAS ASKED BY SERGEANT D. NOWAKOWSKI TC FOLLOW
THE SOUTHWEST AMBULANCE THAT WAS TRANSPORTING OUR VICTIM (IDENTIFIED AS IVAN
YOUNG) TO UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER'S TRAUMA RESUS DEPARTMENT FOR TREATMENT TO
HIS FACIAL INJURIES AS A RESULT OF A GUN SHOT, AND REPORT BACK YOQUNG'S
CONDITION AS SOON AS POSSIBLE.

ONCE ARRIVED AT THE HOSFPITAL, SOUTHWEST AMBULANCE MEDIC JOSHUA KINNUNEN
FROM UNIT 524 HANDED ME A SMALL PIECE OF METAL HE HAD RECOVERED FORM YOQUNG'S
SHIRT. IT APPEARED TCO BE THZ COPPER JACKETING TQ A PROJECTILE AND HELD
EVIDENTIARY VALUE SO I TOCK CUSTODY OF IT.

AFTER GOING INSIDE AND WAITING FOR THE DOCTORS RND NURSES TO FINISH THEIR
TREATMENT OF YOUNG, I WAS A3LE TO QUESTION HIM ABOUT THE INCIDENT. ONE OF THE
TRAUMA PERSONNEL HANDED ME A PLASTIC CONTAINER HOLDING A SMALL PIECE OF COPPER
METAL THAT ALSO APPEARED TC BE THE JACKETING FROM A PROJECTILE, SO I TCOK
CUSTODY OF IT. THEY TOLD ME IT WAS RECOVERED FROM HIS FACE. YOUNG WAS VERY
COHERANT AND REMEMBERED THE INCIDENT VERY WELL. HE TOLD ME THAT HE WAS OUTSIDE
IN HIS GARAGE WORKING ON A AR WHEN HE WAS APPROACHED BY TWO BLACK MALES
(BM[S]). ONE WAS BALD AND WAS WEARING SHORTS AND A BLUE SHIRT. THE SECOND HAD
DREADLOCKS AND SPOKE WITH A JAMAICAN ACCENT. THEY STARTED TALKING TO YOUNG.
ZBOUT WORKING ON CARS. AFTER TALKING FOR A FEW MINUTES THEY BRANDISHED FIRE

MS AND ORDERED YOUNG TC G2 INSIDE. ONCE INSIDE THEY PUT EVERYONE IN THE HOUSE
OWN ON THE FLOOR AND STAETED ASKING FOR MONEY FROM EVERYONE. YOUNG SAID THEY
PLACED SOMETHING OVER HIS HEAD AND FACE SO HE COULD NOT SEE AT ALL. DURING THIS

TIME TWO OF YOUNG'S FRIENDS ARRIVED AND WERE PULLED INTO THE HOUSE AS WELL.
YOUNG DID NOT KNOW WHAT HAPEENED TC THEM. YOUNG TOLD ME HE THOUGHT THE SUSPECTS
GOT A CHECKCARD BUT UNKNOWN IF ANYTHING ELSE WAS TAKEN. YOUNG TEEN TOLD ME THAT
THE BM WITH DREARDLOCKS CAME OVER TO HIM AND PLACED A GUN TO HIS FACE. THE BLACK
MALE THEN SAID "HAVE YOU EVER SEEN ONE OF THESE BEFORE?" AFTER SAYING THAT, THE
BM FIRED 1 SHOT STRIKING HIM IN THE FACE NEAR HIS CHIN. BOTH BMS THEN FLED AND
GOT INTO A VEHICLE LEAVING THE SCENE.

YOUNG TOLD ME THAT HE KNOWS FOR A FACT THE BM WITH DREACLOCKS AND A
JAMAICAN ACCENT WAS THE SHOCTER, AND THAT WITHOUT A DOUBT HE WCULD BE ABLE TO
IDENTIFY THEM BOTH. YOUNG TCLD ME HE THOUGHT HE SAW 3 GUNS 3UT COULD ONLY
IDENTIFY TWO OF THEM. ONE WAS A .380 SEMI-AUTO AND THE QTHER WAS A SMALL BLACK
REVOLVER. I THEN RETURNED 10 THE SCENE OF THE SHCOTING WHERE OFFICER M. BRADY
OF NLVPD'S CRIME SCENZ ANALYST UNIT WAS INVESTIGATING. 1 TJRNED BOTH OF THE
PIECES OF JACKETING QVER TC HER AT THAT TIME. :

NO ATTACHMENTS.

records bureau processed ser no ! detective bureau processed ser no
SCARFF/DENISE 1259 !

supervisor approving ser no ! officer reporting ser ne
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 1225 ! BAILEY/ANTHONY 1366
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ON SATURDAY, 06-26-04 AT 1911 HOURS, OFFICERS WERE DISPATCHED TO 2612
GLORY VIEW IN REFERENCE TO A SHOOTING VICTIM INSIDE THE RESIDENCE. OFFICER
HICKMAN WAS THE FIRST OFFICER TO ARRIVE WITH OFFICER COON ARRIVING SHORTLY
AFTER OFFICER HICKMAN. WHEN I ARRIVED, I WALKED INTO THE FRONT DOOR. THE FRONT
DOOR OPENS TO A LARGE LIVING ROOM WITH A DINING AREA TO THE LEFT OF THE FRONT
DOOR AND THE KITCHEN ON THE OTHER SIDE OF THE DINING AREA. THERE WAS R LARGE
POOL OF BLOOD ON THE FLOOR IN THE DINING AREA AND A LAMP WAS TIPPED OVER IN THE
LIVING ROOM. OFFICER COON WAS TALKING TO A FEMALE TRYING TO PLACE DOGS IN THE
BACKYARD. OFFICER COON TOLD ME SHE WAS A WITNESS AND THE VICTIM, IVAN YOUNG WAS
IN.A BEDROOM ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE RESIDENCE. OFFICER HICKMAN WAS TALKING TO
YOUNG GETTING HIS PERSONAL INFORMATION. YOUNG WAS LAYING ON A BED ON HIS BACK
WITH HIS HANDS AGAINST HIS FACE. I COULD SEE A LOT OF BLOOD ON YOUNG'S NOSE AND
CHIN AREA. YOUNG TOLD ME HE GOT SHOT BY TWO GUYS HE DID NOT KNOW WHILE HE WAS
IN THE GARAGE. YOUNG BEGAN TO YELL SAYING THAT HIS FACE HURTS. AT THIS TIME,
NORTH LAS VEGAS FIRE DEPARTMENT RESCUE UNIT #53 AND SOUTHWEST AMBULANCE UNIT
#524 ARRIVED TO TREAT YOUNG. AS PARAMEDICS ROLLED YOUNG OUT OF THE RESIDENCE ON
A GURNEY, I NOTICED THAT A SCREEN TO A WINDOW LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF THE
RESIDENCE WAS PULLED FROM THE WINDOW FRAME AND HANGING FROM THE TOP. AS
PARAMEDICS LOADED YOUNG -INTO THE AMBULANCE, OFFICERS WERE SEPARATING WITNESSES.

IVAN YOUNG'S WIFE WAS AT THE RESIDENCE WHEN IVAN WAS SHOT. OFFICER HICKMAN
INTERVIEWED HER. REFER TO OFFICER HICKMAN'S FOLLOW-UP REPORT FOR FURTHER
. INFORMATION.

I THEN SPOKE TO A WHITE MALE, IDENTIFIED AS RYAN JOHN. JOHN TOLD ME HE WAS
VISITING HIS GIRLFRIEND AT 2613 GLORY VIEW WHICH IS DIRECTLY ACROSS THE STREET
FROM 2612 GLORY VIEW. JOHN LEFT HIS GIRLFRIENDS HOUSE AND STARTED TO WALK TO
HIS VEHICLE THAT WAS PARKED IN FRONT OF 2613 GLORY VIEW. A BLACK MALE YELLED TO
JOHN FROM THE GARAGE OF 2612 GLORY VIEW THAT IVAN WANTED TO TALK TO HIM.
BECAUSE JOHN KNEW IVAN AND WAS FRIENDS WITH HIM, HE WALKED ACROSS THE STREET.
THE UNIDENTIFIED BLACK MALE OPENED THE HOUSE DOOR INSIDE THE GARAGE THAT OPENS
TO A LAUNDRY ROOM SO JOHN COULD WALX INSIDE. AS JOHN WALKED INTO THE LAUNDRY
ROOM, THE SUSPECT PUT A PISTOL TO JOHN'S THROAT AND TOLD HIM TO GET ON THE
GROUND IN THE KITCHEN AND PLACE HIS HANDS BEHIND HIS BACK. THERE IS ANOTHER
DOOR THAT OPENS INTO THE KITCHEN FROM THE LAUNDRY ROOM. JOHN LAID ON THE FLOOR
WITH HIS HEAD TOWARDS THE SINK AND HIS FEET AT THE REFRIGERATOR. THE SUSPECT
TIED JOHN'S HANDS BEHIND HIS BACK AND STOMPED ON JOHN'S HEAD. THE SUSPECT THEN
PLACED A BLACK JACKET OVER HIS HEAD. THE SUSPECT THEN PLACED A GUN TO JOHN'S
HEAD AND TOLD HIM THAT IF HE MOVES, HE WAS GOING TO BLOW HIS BRAINS OUT. THE
SUSPECT THE WENT INTO JOHN'S POCKETS AND FOUND AN AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE
(ATM) CARD IN A FRONT POCKET. THE SUSPECT THEN TOLD JOHN TO TELL HIM HIS
PERSONAL PIN NUMBER TO HIS ATM. JOHN TOLD HIM. THE SUSPECT THEN TOLD JOHN THAT
IF THE NUMBER WAS WRONG, HE WOULD COME BACK AND KILL HIM. THE SUSPECT THEN
WALKED AWAY. JOHN HEARD TWO MALES TALKING TO IVAN. JOHN SAID THAT IVAN WAS

ittt ettt it i R R R R

records bureau processed ser no | detective bureau processed ser no
SCARFF/DENISE 1259 !

supervisor approving ser no | officer reporting ser no
NOWAKOWSKI/DENNIS 1225 | HOYT/MARK 1334
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CLOSE TO HIM, NEAR THE DINING ROOM AREA. JOHN H
SHOOT HIM. THEN JOHN HEARD A GUN SHOT AND IVAN
THE SUSPECTS ASK THE OTHER SUSPECT 1P HE SHOT H
JAMAICAN ACCENT SAID, YES I SHOT HIM. JOHN THEN
THE FRONT DOOR. ABOUT ONE TO TWO MINUTES LATER,
JACKET OFF OF HIS HEAD. JOHN RAN TO THE LAUNDRY
FROM BEHIND HIS BACK AND JUMPED OUT OF A WINDOW
YARD. JOHN JUMPED SEVERAL YARDS NORTHBOUND, RUNN

---------------

------------------

ittt i R e T -
- -

EARD IVAN ASKING A MALE NCT TO
SCREAM. JOHN THEN HEARD ONE OF
IM. THE OTHER MALE, IN A

HEARD THE SUSPECT LEAVE THROUGH
JOHN STOOD UP, TAKING THE

ROOM, PULLING ONE OF HIS HANDS
THAT FACES NORTH TO THE REAR
ING AWAY FROM THE RESIDENCE.

TAKEN FROM AN UNKNOWN ATM MACHINE. WELLS FARGO WOULD NOT KNOW THE EXACT
LOCATION UNTIL MONDAY BECAUSE IT WAS PAST NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS. JOHN COMPLETED
A WITNESS STATEMENT AT THE SCENE.

ANOTHER VICTIM, JERMAUN MEANS TOLD ME THAT

BECAUSE IVAN WAS PAINTING HIS VEHICLE. APPARENTI

HIS HOME. AS MEANS WALKED UP TO THE FRONT DOOR,
DOOR AND BEGAN TO WALK OUT, ONE OF THE MALES WAS

AND THE OTHER HAD DREAD 1OCKS. MEANS BELIEVED THE

WEARING A WIG. THE SUSPECTS GRABBED ONTO MEANS'S
RESIDENCE. THEY FORCED HIM TO THE FLOOR JUST INS

HANDS BEHIND HIS BACK. MEANS TOLD ME THAT BOTH MALES

HE WENT OVER TO 2612 GLORY VIEW
« IVAN PAINTS VEHICLES OUT OF
TWO UNKNOWN MALES OPENED THE
WEARING A BEIGE SUIT JACKET
MALE WITH THE DREAD LOCKS WAS
ARM AND PULLED HIM INTO THE
IDE THE FRONT DOOR AND TIED HIS
HAD GUNS IN THEIR HANDS

BUT HE COULD NOT DESCRIBE THE WEAPONS. ONE OF THE SUSPECTS ASKED MEANS IF HE

HAD ANY MONEY. MEANS TOLD. HIM YES. ONE OF THE SUSPE

r

DOLLARS FROM MEANS'S FRONT PANTS POCKET. MEANS
BILLS. THE SUSPECT ALSC TOOK MEANS'S CELLULAR

REMEMBERED HAVING SEVEN $100.00
TELEPHONE, MEANS TOLD ME THAT THE

SUSPECTS THEN LEFT OUT OF THE FRONT DOOR. AFTER A FEW SECONDS, MEANS GOT up,
BROKE THE WIRES THE SUSPECTS TIED HIM UP WITH AND RAN QUTSIDE TO HIS VEHICLE.
MEANS 'S GIRLFRIEND, DESTINEE WADDY WAS WAITING INSIDE THE VEHICLE. MEANS TOLD
ME THAT HE DID NOT HEAR ANY GUN SHOTS SO HE BELIEVED IVAN WAS ALREADY SHOT
BEFORE HE GOT THERE. MEANS RECEIVED MEDICAL ATTENTION AT THE SCENE AND HE
COMPLETED A WITNESS STATEMENT. MEANS TOLD ME HE COULD NOT IDENTIFY -THE-
SUSPECTS.

WADDY TOLD ME THAT SHE SAW TWO UNIDENTIFIED MALES WALK OUT OF THE
RESIDENCE AND GOT INTO A DARK GREEN VEHICLE., WADDY SAID THE VEHICLE WAS

POSSIBLY A PONTIAC GRAND AM. THE VEHICLE WAS LAST
WADDY DESCRIBED THE MALES AS ONE WEARING A WIG,
WAS ABQUT S5'11"

SEEN WESTBOUND ‘ON GLORY VIEW.

ABOUT S5'8" TALL. THE OTHER MALE
TALL. BOTH WERE WEARING BLUE AND WHITE CLOTHING. WADDY TOLD ME

THAT SHE HAS NEVER SEEN THE TWO MALES BEFORE.

WADDY ALSO COMPLETED A WITNESS

STATEMENT AT THE SCENE,

_-----___—__--___-..-_-._—--_--____-_.---....-_---——-.-..---_--..-—...--..--___
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IVAN'S SON, AARON DENNIS WAS ALSO AT THE RESIDENCE WHEN HE WAS SHOT. :
‘DENNIS SAID THAT HIS FATHER CAME INTO THE HOUSE AND TOLD. HIM, HIS MOTHER AND
HIS COUSIN TO DO WHAT THEY!SAY. TWO BLACK MALES WERE WALKING BEHIND IVAN. ONE -
WAS WEARING A BLACK JACKET. THE TWO MALES DEMANDED EVERYONE TO GET ON THE
GROUND . ONE OF THE SUSPECTS TIED DENNIS'S HANDS BEHIND HIS BACK. DENNIS THEN
ONLY REMEMBERED ONE OF THE MALES ASKING FOR MONEY AND SHOOTING IVAN. DENNIS
COMPLETED A WITNESS STATEMENT AND HE WAS TREATED BY PARAMEDICS AT THE SCENE.

IVAN'S NEPHEW, JOSE POSADA TOLD ME TWO UNIDENTIFIED, BLACK MALES WERE i
THREATENING IVAN FOR MONEY. THE SUSPECTS MADE POSADA AND DENNIS FACE A WALL AND
ASKED THEM WHERE ALL THE TELEPHONES WERE. POSADA TOLD THE MALES AND THE
SUSPECTS BROKE ALL OF THE TELEPHONES AND CELLULAR PHONES. POSADA SAID THE
SUSPECTS TIED EVERYOCNE UP WITH WIRES FROM THE FLOOR LAMPS IN THE LIVING ROOM,
POSADA THEN SAID HIS UNCLE IVAN WAS SHOT IN THE HEAD. POSADA DESCRIBED ONE OF
THE MALES AS A BLACK MALE WITH BRAIDS. THE OTHER MALE WAS A BLACK MALE WITH A
DARK AFRO. ONE OF THE SUSPECTS WAS WEARING A TUXEDO SHIRT. POSADA ALSQO SAID !
THAT HE SAW THREE GUNS. THE TWO MALES THEN WALKED OUT OF THE FRONT DOOR. POSADA!
COMPLETED A WITNESS STATEMENT AT THE SCENE AND WAS TREATED BY PARAMEDICS. i

CSI BRADY ARRIVED AND PROCESSED THE SCENE. DETECTIVES PRIETO AND MELGARJEO'
ALSO ARRIVED ON SCENE. OFFICER BAILEY WENT TO UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER TO
CHECK ON IVAN'S INJURIES. IVAN WAS LAST LISTED IN STABLE CONDITION. OFFICER
BAILEY ALSO INTERVIEWED IVAN. REFER TC OFFICER BAILEY'S FOLLOW-UP REPORT FOR
+ FORTHER DETAILS. TAMMY POSADA, JOSE'S MOTHER ARRIVED ON SCENE AND TOOK
‘POSSESSION OF THE FOUR DOGS BELONGING TO IVAN. TAMMY ALSO TOOK CUSTODY OF JOSE
AND DENNIS UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE. AT ABOUT 2330 HOURS, DISPATCH RECEIVED A
TELEPHONE CALL FROM TOM WINTER ABOUT POSSIBLE INFORMATION ON THE 'SUSPECTS.
WINTER TOLD ME HE OWNS SEVERAL PROPERTIES IN ‘THE LAS VEGAS VALLEY. ONE OF HIS
EX-TENANTS, ERIC HAWKINS OWNS A DARK GREEN CHEVY MALIBU AND WAS A SUSPECT IN A
BURGLARY CASE ABCUT TWO MONTHS AGO. WINTER SAW A NEWS RELEASE AND TOLD ME THAT
HAWKINS'S METHOD OF OPERATION MATCHES A BURGLARY TWO MONTHS AGOD, SIMILAR TO
2612 GLORY VIEW. WINTER TOLD ME HAWKINS SPEAKS WITH A JAMAICAN ACCENT AND HAS A
BROTHER-IN-LAW THAT HE IS ALWAYS SEEN WITH. WINTER TOLD ME HAWKINS'S SOCIAL
SECURITY NUMBER IS ZSee@ERmSEES. A RECORDS CHECK ON HAWKINS REVEALED THAT HE HAS
BEEN ARRESTED IN THE PAST FOR NARCOTICS AND WEAPONS CHARGES WITH A D.0.B. OF
072284. HE IS LISTED AS 5'l10" TALL AND 140 POUNDS. DISPATCH PROVIDED POSSIBLE
ADDRESSES IN LAS VEGAS OF 1504 JOELLA OR 3332 PARAGON DRIVE. :

ATTACHMENTS: FIVE WITNESS STATEMENTS.

..___-------------—--——-------—-----------_----------_--__—-..-----.__-..____________
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N LAS VEGAS POLICE DEPMWIMENT

WITNESS STATEMENT
L. LAS VEGAL
POLICE Tvpe oF crime: _ FITY (Y\q@y‘ﬁ,
Date Occurred: ’ Time Occurred; [C\H

Location of Oc::urrence 7?/ e C_LC&‘{ AAUCLN
" Name of Person Giving Statement: %ﬂuﬂf MMHE
Residence Address: (QW PZ”/MM Elmt le Code: gf@é{ Phone: mgﬂg

Business Address: ,/ Zp Code: ___~ 7 _ Phone: / :
Date of Birth: _.l;u_ Sociat Security # M Occupstion: Necrtz] _ﬂ%/‘é{?[ﬂ,r

~ Best Time to Contact During the Day: 2904713 Best Place to Contact During the Day: ?904225

DETAILS: | was 6rﬁ?z[ﬂ 4] Y cal (/\fubﬁM fov i dCaend  fvcape a1l
l@/wu 2 bacy mm(s WAtk 4 hwmd ﬂ /A'f/fcif) ﬁs‘/pcD civ_lmled life
A% goand am /xf,mmumrrj LJM/J Die i, wm m S5'¢ ﬁbmul)
slhor "I (o inchos tatler rmmlu . weaia wohtle and bice

 Teowr [ iﬂﬁlm L _AGL DM%"/ 41255 Lo the haise $lut He

- ihrident /IMJPM/{ /h . nmi L 8aus ﬂo‘f i ‘rw Qezer et (Mg f”m gy fUﬁW
bl Sl ti mnd ohde = ﬂﬂo K,LI

| HAVE READ THIS STATEMENT CONSISTING OF _____ PAGE(s) AND | AFFIRM TU THE TRUTH AND ACCURACY OF THE FACTS CONTAINEL

HEREIN. THIS STATEMENT WAS COMPLETED AT (LOCATION)
ON THE ji' AT
/337

WITNESS:

20.137 (Rev., B8/98)
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Rickie Slaughter | 2
Case #C204957

I drove from Eldorado Cleaners to the 2600 block of Glory View North Las Vegas, Nevada exactly reversing
my previous route taken (see previous Google map). The route took approximately 24 minutes.

Craig Retke
Nevada Investigative Group LL.C
PILB #1496

App. 1389
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Driving directions to Nellis @ Bonanza (S)

(&) 2612 Glory ViewLn
North Las Vegas, NV 89032

" 1. Head west on Glory View Ln loward Prevail Dripreval Ly~~~ ™~
*¢ 2. Takethe 1stleft onto Prevail Dr/Prevail Ln
## 3. Tumright at Nobility St
Wy 4, Takq the 1st left onto Victor Way
s 5, Tum left at W Lake Mead Bivd

r+ 8, Tum right at N Nellis Bivd

¥

L 20 - ) MASUTES

These direcuons are for planning purpeses anly. You may find that construction projects, trafiic. weather, or other svents may cause conditions to differ

from the map resufts, and you shouid plan your route accortingly, You must obey all signs ar notices regarding your route.
Map dats ©2011 Google

Report a problem
53)3. 3 \ \\

DrovE From 262 Gropy View N.L.V.
TS TRE \nTeRsEcTion oF Newws [ Bonanza

TQTP\'L TIME 2D MIRUTES. 8.3 h-mbé\s APtEoX .

\)ML\\’-,D SPEED Limts,

».//maps.google.com/ Aanimnts
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Driving directions to Bonanza @ Neltis (W)

@) 2600 Glory View Ln
¥ North Las Vegas, NV 89032

1. Head south on Rejoice DriRejoice Ln toward Unitsd Ln
## 2. Tum right at Nobility St

<y 3. Take the 1st ieft onto Victor Way

=y 4, Tum left at W Lake Mead Bivd

¢~ 5. Tum right at N Martin L King Blvd

e B, Tum left at W Bonanza Rd

Bonanza @ Nellis (W)
@ . —— _%m\l-ﬁb S ,a:D'A\JV\\rMTE_S o

These directions ere for planning purposes only. You may find that consiruction projects, traffic, weather, or other events may cause conditions w diffar
from the map resuilts. and you should plan yout route accorndingly. You must obey all signe or notices regarding your route.

Map data @201 Google
Report a probiem
O ) 24 ) W

Decut from 261D

p//maps.google.com/ 3/30/2011
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4/25/2011 715 N Nellis Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89110 t...
715 N Nellis Bivd, Las Vegas, NV 89110

1. Head south on N Nellis Bivd toward E Bonanza Rd ST got2mi
About 2 mins - e total 1.2 mi

r) 2 Tum nght onto E Chatle‘ston Blvd go. 1.6 mi
o About 3 mms ;') o e _ total 2 7 mt
—— Y Take the ramp onto |-515 NIUS 93 NIUS 95 N go 3 9 mi
About 4 mins total 6. 7 mi

N 4. Take exn 760 for Martln L King Blvd kS - 5 ]
About1 mlnr ) ‘_" T ;: ‘ "'“',.:_,i;., _ktotal 71 ma]

5 Tum nght onto N Martin L King Blvd go 1.3 mi

About 4 mins total 8.5 mi

6 Tum Jeft onto w Lake Meadx Bivd. - & "%y g6 0.9, mi,

L Abobtzmins” v . AL 5 ‘°.ta' 9.4'mi

7. Tumn right at the 1st Cross street onto Vlctor Way Lo T e go1bttt

Cre AT totalQ4m|

RS TR - g

" g

B. Tum right onte Noblllty St o

(1 9 Take the 1st Iett onto Prevall D-rlPre\-:all Ln .. 7 go0.2 mi

10 Tum nght onto‘:Glory Vle“t Ln_
W D'astmahon wntj be o the teﬂ

, 2612 Glory View Ln, North Las Vegas NV 89032

These directions are for planning purposes only. You may find that construction projects, traffic, w eather, or othér events h'ay cause
conditions to differ from the map results, and you should plan your route accordingly. You must obey all S|gns of notlces regardlng your
route. . . .o

Map data ©2011 Google :
[ Directions w eren't right? Please find your route on maps.google.com and click "Report a problerrt' at the bottom Ieft

maps.qooale.com/maps?f=d&source=s ... S 212

App. 1394




4/25/2011 715 N Nellis Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89110 t...
G l Directions to 2612 Glory View Ln, North Las Vegas, NV 89032
008 e maps 10.3 mi — about 18 mins

Download Googlle Maps on your
phone at goagle.com/gmm
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4/25/2011 715 N Nellis Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89110 t... A
G l Directions to 2612 Glory View Ln, North Las Vegas, NV 89032
008 e maps 9.7 mi — about 18 mins R
‘ Save trees. Go green!

Download Google Maps on your "\?
phone at google.com/gmm \% 4
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Slaughter, Rickie | 1

Case # C204957
Nevada Investigative Group, LLC
PILB#1496
8414 W. Farm Rd #180-505
Las Vegas, NV 89131
(702} 296-5005
Case Investigation
To: Attorney Ozzie Fumo Date: 02/14/11
From: Investigator Craig Retke
Case # C204957 / Rickie Slaughter
Attorney/Client
Privilege
Persons Involved: Vanita Williams ( Monique Westbrook's Grandmother)
Monique Westbrook
Destinece Waddy
Tiffany Johnson

Investigator Craig Retke

Synopsis:
The following report details the up to date investigation which was conducted with or regarding the above
persons by Investigator Retke. Investigation is ongoing. a

Details:

On 02/08/11 at 9:00am I called (870) 254-2736, this is the last known number of Monique Westbrook. 1
spoke to a female and identified myself: This female identified herself as Vanita Williams, as the grandmother
of Monique Westbrook. Vanita Williams stated that Monique had moved down south to her Grandpa's.
Williams said that Westbrook was living with her in Arkansas. Williams would not give me the address or
phone number of Monique. I gave Williams my name and phone number and asked that she give it to Monique.
I received no call from Monique Westbrook.

On 02/09/11, 1 received no call from Monique Westbrook.

On 02/10/11 at 9:00am I again called and spoke to Vanita Williams and she said she hasn't been in contact with
Monique. ‘ o

02/11/11, I conducted a comprehensive search for Monique Westbrook which resulted in an address of 273
“lushing Rd., Malvern, AR 72104 and a phone number of (501) 467-3660. 1 called this phone number and
ceceived an answer from an older male adult. T asked for Monique Westbrook and this subject sdid "I think you
have the wrong number".
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Rickie Slaughter | 2
Case # C204957

EEEELEE L L

On 02/10/11, T attempted to locate Destinee Waddy on three phone numbers.

e (702) 254-9341, I received no answer.

* (818) 358-3286, I received no answer. Listed with address 12803 Burbank Blvd #D, Valley Village, CA
91607.

¢ (702) 420-0739. This number went to a voicemail box that was full. Listed with address 12803 Burbank
Blvd #D, Valley Village, CA 91607.

On 02/13/11 at 7:55am 1 called (702) 420-0739. A female answered the phone and I asked her if this was
Destinee Waddy and she said "yes". I then identified myself and explained I was working for Attorney Fumo
on the case of Rickie Slaughter. I asked if she knew who T was talking about and she said "yes, that guy who
robbed those people". Iasked Waddy if she would explain to me what she witnessed that day on 06/26/04,
Waddy said she was sitting in her car across the street from 2612 Glory View, North Las Vegas. Waddy said
her boyfriend Jermaun Means had gone inside the Glory View house. Waddy said she couldn't see the front
door of the house. She said a short time went by and she saw 3 guys walking form the porch area of 2612 Glory
View. I asked if she saw them walk out the front door and she said "no". I asked her to describe these subjects.
Waddy stated that all she could see is that one had dreadlocks, one had a heavy coat on and one had a beanie on.
Waddy said she thought it was strange that these guys were wearing the clothes because it was hot outside.
Waddy watched the three males walk East bound across the street and get into a emerald green cai. Waddy
said they did not drive past the Glory View house when they left. She then saw her boyfriend as he.came out to
the car and used her phone to call 911. She also said her boyfriends hands had marks on them like something
had been wrapped around them. She said "I think he was tied up”.

LA R LR E L E L L ]

On 02/10/11 I contacted Tiffany Johnson on (702) 824-8292. T asked her if she had composed the letter I asked
her to write regarding the dealings she has had with North Las Vegas Detective Priedo. She stated that she did
complete the letter. I asked if I could pick it up from her and she said to come by her house anytime, At 10:00
am I went to Tiffany Johnson's address of 1046 Greymouth St., Las Vegas, NV and contacted her. I asked if I
could talk to her further regarding the case and she asked me to come in. Johnson had explained she had just
been served a Subpoena by the District Attorney's office. Johnson gave me a letter describing her past dealings
with Detective Priedo (see attached letter). T asked Johnson if she was familiar with the interviews she did with
Detective Priedo on 07/15/04 and 07/20/04. 1 handed her the interview transcripts and had her look at them. 1
asked if she would like to talk about the case with me and she was very apprehensive. Johnson said that she
didn't really want to get involved in this case anymore because it's been such a long time and she wanted to put
1t in her past.

I asked Johnson what she was doing the day of the incident and she said she was working at E] Dorado
Cleaners. She worked from 7am-7pm and Rickie had her car all day.

I asked her to confirm if she had a child with Rickie Slaughter. She stated that she did, his name is Rickie Jr., 7
years old.

Johnson asked me if she had to testify in court and I told her it was a possibility.
I asked if she would like to talk to me anymore and she said "no" that she would like to get this behind her.

I thanked her for her time, gave her my business card and asked her to call me if she remembered anything else.
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Case # C204957

LA EEEE 2T

The Nevada Department of Motor Vehicles (DMYV) does not classify or in any way group a searchable database
to determine vehicles associated with any race, creed or color per the Civil Rights Act. It was determined that
am not able locate any information matching a green vehicle to an Afro American male.

i

ERRRRRRARRRA

Continuing investigation to locate and interview:

Joquan Richard, aka Lil Marv, D.0.B. 02/21/1985. CCDC and NDOC checks with negative results
and several address checks returned negative.

Cheryl Brown, girlfriend of Joquan Richard. Last known address of 1845 Decatur # 2, Las Vegas, NV.
Phone number (702) 644-4396, disconnected as of this date.

Tom Winters

Erick Hawkins

Lloyd Ham

Marquis Lerner

Research on Car Club (press release's etc.)

Craig Retke
Nevada Investigative Group LLC
PILB #1496
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Opening Statement

Factually Innocend

The evidence in this case will show that Ricky Slaughter is not just not guilty, but rather
factually innocent.

Make no mistake about it, what happened to Ivan Young, His family and friends that

evening on June 26, 2004 was a tragedy. But the even bigger tragedy is that the
perpetrators are still out there.

Ivan Young was shot between 6:30 and & 7:11p.m.
We can reasonably know this becaus@called the police(at exactly 7:11 p.m.

The evidence in this case will show that Mr. Ricky Slaughter had absolutely nothing to
do with it. Other than being a patsy so that the real criminals could get away with it.

Ricky was not at 2612 Glory View between 6:30 and 7:11 p.m. on June 26, 2004. The
evidence in this case will show that he was over 10 miles away with a young woman
named Monique Westbrook.

AND Monique Westbrook will come into this court and she will testify that on June 26,
2004 she and Ricky were together from approximately 4p.m. until 7p.m. that evening.

She will tell you that she called him at approximately 2p.m.
She will tell you that he arrived at her apartment at approximately 4 p.m.

She will tell you that she lives near the comer of Bonanza and Lamb in a housing
complex called the Vera Johnson Manor, also called the Rogich.

She will tell you that she met with Ricky in the parking lot and that the two of them
walked around the complex for a short while and then the two of them went inside her
apartment.

She will tell you that she shared that apartment with her friend Shamika Brass. She will
tell you that she and Shamika Brass are still friends to this day.

She will tell you that Shamika was not alone in her apartment. Shamika was there with
her childs father Charles McKeller.

Monique will tell you that she and Ricky watched a movie and they had sex and that
Ricky left the Vera Johnson Manor at approximately 7:00 p.m.

Ricky Slaughter is Factually Innocent
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Tiffany Johnson

From the Vera Johnson manor at Bonanza and Lamb, Ricky drove to the El Dorado
cleaners; which was on the corner of Bonanza and Nellis. There was also an Albertsons
supermarket inside that complex at the time.

That drive, the evidence will show takes approximately 5 minutes. It is approximately a
three mile drive from Bonanza and Lamb to Bonanza and Nellis.

On June 26, 2004 Ricky lived with his then girl friend. Her name is Tiffany Johnson.

Tiffany Johnson will come into this court and she will tell you that Ricky picked her up
from where she worked inside the Albertsons Shopping Center at a place called the El
Dorado cleaners at approximately 7p.m.

Now Tiffany will be the first to admit that Ricky is not the most punctual person in the
world. But she will also tell you that there is no possible way her picked her up at 7:30
because if that were the case, she would have been pissed. — Her words not mine.

She will tell you that it was not unusual for him to be a few minutes late but there is no
was he was later that 7:15.

Remember the call came into the police at 7:11.

The evidence in this case will show 2612 Glory View is a 10 mile drive to Bonanza and
Nellis.

There is no way Ricky could have made that 10 mile drive in 4 minutes.

No One could make that drive in 4 minutes it is factually impossible

Ricky is factually innocent

Further the evidence in this case will show that there is no way for Ricky to have made
that drive without stopping to add water. You see both Monique Westbrook and Tiffany
Johnson remember that car very well. And it had a radiator leak.

She will also confirm that on June 26, 2004 Ricky had 2 black eyes and stitches that were
recently removed from his face near his eyes.

None of the victims described a black eye

She will confirm that Ricky does not speak with a Jamaican accent.

She will also tell you, as she told Det. Prieto on June 28, 2004 that after Ricky picked her
up she dropped him off at their apartment and she left to go and pick up her son from her
grandfathers house. Ricky was without a vehicle after 7:30 ish

You see the evidence in this case will show that Ricky is factually Innocent.
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The Victims

The evidence will show that each of the Victims in this case remembers the assailants
differently.

Defense Expert Gregory Loftus will explain why this is so.

And only three out of six identified Ricky as the assailant. The reason for this is because
when a victim sees a six pack of pictures the brain believes the perpetrator is in there, and
they want very much to pick someone out.

Ivan Young
2 Black Males
One was bald with a blue shirt
The other had dreadlocks and spoke with a Jamaican accent
In his taped statement he states that one was talking about going back to Belize.
One guy was from Belize and did not like it here in America

Jennifer Dennis
2 Black Males
One had a blue shirt and Jeans.
The other had a Red shirt and Jeans
She told police that her husband Ivan Young paints graphics on cars.
One of the suspects was talking about a Pontiac
and that Young charges too much money for his work (Hickman Rpt)

Ryan John
2 Black Males
One spoke with a Jamaican Accent
Said he could not ID the suspects

Jermaun Means
Saw 2 Black Males leave 2612 Glory View
One had a beige suit Jacket
The other had dreadlocks that was possibly a wig
He could see the guns but could not describe them
Took $1300.00 and his cell phone.
Did not hear the gun shot

Destiny Waddy
Was outside
Saw the suspects drive away in a Green Pontiac Grand AM

Aaron Dennis
2 black males

Jose Posada
2 black males one was wearing a tuxedo jacket
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Detective Prieto
This is a case of sloppy police investigation

The evidence in this case will show that shortly after the incident occurred, it was
broadcast all over the news. As you can imagine when something like this happens, the
police do not always release all of the details. In this case the evidence will show that
one fact that was not released was the fact that at least one of the perpetrators spoke with
a Jamaican accent.

In any event, shortly after the incident was broadcast on the news; Det. Prieto received
information that someone had called the police to report that he may know who is
responsible for this crime. ‘

The person who made this call was not someone trying to work off his own criminal
cases. He is a respected Las Vegas Businessman named Tom Winter.

Tom Winter will come into this court and he will tell you that in 2004 he used to rent to a
man named Eric Hawkins.

He will tell you that Eric Hawkins drove a green Chevy Malibu.
Destiny Waddy told police the suspects drove a green Pontiac grand AM.
Both Chevy and Pontiac are made by the same maker GM

Tom Winter will testify that he informed police that Eric Hawkins was believed by him
to have the same method of operation as the suspects on the news.

He will tell you that he informed police that Eric Hawkins was known to hang around his
brother in law.

Most importantly he will tell you that Eric Hawkins speaks with a Jamaican accent

Yet with all of this information what does Det Prieto do?

Does he meet with Mr. Hawkins so he can see him first hand. - NO

He simply calls him to ask him where he was on Saturday June 26, 2004

This call takes place over a month later and not surprisingly Mr, Hawkins knows exactly
where he was that night. He claims that he was with his grand mother.

Does Det. Prieto meet with the grand mother — NO.

He just calls her and confirms Hawkins story.

The grandmothers name is Ms. Christmas

A Jamaican sur-name

In fact Det. Prieto never even made a photo line up with Eric Hawkins in it at all.
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Ivan, Jennifer, Ryan, Jurmaun, and the kids never even had the opportunity to even ID or
rule out Eric Hawkins as a suspect.

Detective Prieto’s bias is evident in his report.

The incident occurred June 26, 2004.

On that date in her report to police Destiny Waddy told police she saw a green Pontiac
Grand AM

She never mentioned a Ford. - Ever!

However within hours of the crime Det. Prieto had been informed by a CI. That he
overheard Ricky talking about the incident.

The evidence will show that a CI or confidential Informant is a person who is working off
their own criminal activity by snitching out the activity of another.

The evidence in this case will show that the CI in this case was deeply involved in the
criminal justice system. We know this because Det. Prieto will tell you that the CI in this
case has already snitched on two other armed robberies.

This CI tells Det. Prieto that Ricky did this crime in his Leaky Ford Taurus.

Even though none of the victims of this crime describe a green Ford — Det. Prieto in his
search warrant to the judge lies to the Judge and states that a victim did in fact see a green
Pontiac or Ford.

“During Hoyt’s initial investigation witnesses at the scene identified the suspects vehicle
as a green Grand AM or Ford.”

Ladies and Gentlemen the evidence will show the “OR. FORD" is a lie.
This is in Prieto’s June 28" 2004 affidavit to the Magistrate Judge.

The evidence will show that later on June 30" 2004 when Det. Prieto drafts his initial
police report he will include the lie, when he knows full well that Destiny Waddy the
only person to describe the get away vehicle only reported seeing a green Pontiac Grand
AM. She never mentions a ford.

Also on June 30™, 2004 when Det. Prieto drafts his report he includes the name Johnson
when he is describing one of the victims. Clearly he had Tiffany Johnson on his mind
when he made this error in his report.

Detective Prieto did speak with Tiffany Johnson on June 28", 2004. A mere thirty hours
after the incident at Glory View had occurred. And during that initial meeting when
Tiffany had no idea what had occurred she told him in no uncertain terms that Ricky
picked her up from work that evening at 7 p.m. His normal time.

She even told him / have no reason to lie to you.
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The evidence will show that Det. Prieto threatens her to state it was later.
-He accused her of planning it

He accused her of waiting in the car.

He then told her what happened to Ivan. She was crying.

He asks her where did he get the money? Her response is what money?
He threatens her — Who is going to watch your kid while you are in prison

Tiffany told Prieto she gave Ricky her car that day because it was acting FUNNY
(Johnson Taped Stmt #2 at 11:30)

Later during the interview he asked her if Ricky bought anything. She replies that we
bought some Freon because my car was leaking
(Johnson Taped Stmt #2 at 18:07)

She knows nothing — because there is nothing to tell.

After being pressured. Having no sleep or food after her home has been ransacked she
still maintains that Ricky picked her up no later than 7:15

All Detective Prieto had to do was pull the surveilence tape at the cleaners or at
Albertsons and he could have verified the exact time Ricky picked Tiffany up. The
evidence will show he failed to do so.

Later Det. Prieto lied on another affidavit.

On November 5" 2009 He signs an affidavit stating that be had Ricky’s shoes tested and
that there was blood on the shoe and that it was covered in polish.

When in fact the report came back and affirmatively ruled out blood as the substance on

the shoe. The report actually indicated the substance on Ricky’s shoe was some form of
rust.

Ricky actually freely gives Det. Prieto his DNA and none of Ricky’s DNA was found at
2612 Glory View,

Jaquan Richard - Interviewed at the Jail — Confirms Ricky was at his house at 7pm
Was the one who shot into Ricky’s car.

Germ Jeremy McCoy — Had a beef with Ricky — Had him Jumped caused the Black eyes.

Ladies and Gentlemen the Physical Evidence in this case does not match.
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$1300.00 was taken from Jurman Means
$201.50 was taken from the 7-11 ATM
Yet the evidence will show that a mere 30 hours later when Ricky and Tiffany’s home
was searched and destroyed by Det Prieto and his associates no money was found at
Ricky’s home or on his person.

There was blood everywhere from Ivan.

Someone stepped in that blood and left a shoeprint. All the victims were ruled out as
having left that bloody shoeprint.

Circumstantially one of the perpetrators must have left the shoeprint.

Yet the evidence will show that no blood was found on Ricky’s shoe. The person who
left that bloody print drove away in a green Pontiac. Ricky’s green ford was tested for
blood. None of Ivan Youngs blood was found in Ricky’s car.

The evidence will show Detective Prieto never even bothered to check Eric Hawkins
Green Chevy Malibu for blood.

There was a bullet found in Ivan.
It does not match the caliber of the guns found in Ricky’s car.

Destiny Waddy will tell you that she saw the suspects drove away in a green Pontiac
Grand AM She pointed out tire maks as they drove away.

The tire marks were photographed
There will be no evidence that those tire marks were left by Ricky’s leaky ford Tarus.

The evidence will show that Det. Prieto never even looked at Eric Hawkins green Chevy
Malibu. We will never know if those tires match up.

Jennifer Dennis, Ivan’s wife reported to police that one of the suspects stated that Ivan
charges too much to paint cars. No evidence that Ricky ever had a car painted or
inquired about having his car painted.

7-11

Someone goes into the 7-11 located at 3051 East Charleston and uses Ryan Johns ATM.
card at approximately 8:00 p.m.

Remember Ricky is without a car.

The government wants to make a big deal that both Ricky’s apartment and the 7-11 are
located on East Charleston.

What the evidence in this case will show is that if you were to walk out of Ricky and
Tiffany Johnson apartment and look to the left there is an AM PM about one block away.
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If you were to walk out of their apartment and look to your right there is a Circle K even
closer. Just about a half block away. The evidence will show that both these
convenience stores have an ATM.

If in fact Ricky was to have walked to that 7-11, he would have had to walk right past the
circle K doors. The 7-11 is almost a mile away.

The Guns

The guns do not match.
There were two guns found in Ricky’s car. Neither one of them could have fired the
bullet into Ivans head.
The witnesses describe a revolver and a small hand gun.
Well ladies and gentlemen all guns are either a revolver or hand gun.
The evidence will show they all come in black, silver or chrome.
The color doesn’t tell us anything
The government expert will talk about two things.
Composition — What a bullet is made of ie. Copper, zinc, Iron, Lead
Design Features — The markings on the outside of a bullet.

None of her information can possibly tie Ricky to what happened at 2612 Glory View

The evidence will show that all of our blood is made up of the same composition sodium
(salt), water, glucose (sugar). We all have it. What sets us apart is our DNA, Bullets do
not have DNA,

What the government expert will tell you is 2 things.
1. the bullet fragment found at 2612 Glory View matches the bullet fragment found
in Ivans head; and

2. That a bullet fragment found in Ricky and Tiffany’s Ford contains lead. As do all
bullets.

None of that information puts Ricky at the scene.
The evidence will show that there is no physical evidence that ties Ricky to this crime.

He is factually Innocent.

Ladies and Gentlemen at the conclusion of this case I am going to ask you to return a
verdict of NOT GUILTY on all counts.

Not just because Ricky is NOT GUILTY.

Not just because the Government did not prove each and every element of every single
charge beyond a reasonable doubt.

But because Indeed Ricky is Factually‘Innocend.
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Prieto
L Lack of Investigation

You have been a Cop for over twenty years

You were trained in the academy

You were taught how to write reports

You were instructed to be fair

You were instructed to be complete and thorough

You typed your report on June 30, 2004 ~ Correct.

That was four days after the Incident at 2612 Glory View

You wrote your report after you had arrested Ricky

You have reviewed your report prior to coming to court today

You have been on this case since 2004

You have probably read every report in this file

The evening this happened it was on the news

Now it’s common for police to not give all details of a crime when it is broadcast for the
news

That way if a person calls in you can more easily check their truthfulness or knowledge
of a crime when you receive information known only to a select few.

For instance in this case the fact that one of the suspects spoke with a Jamaican accent
was not broadcast on the news was it

On June 26, 2004 you are dispatched over to 2612 Glory View

You were told it was a robbery

When you arrived you noted the house was in disarray

You noticed a pool of blood in the kitchen area (Show Photo-of the Blood
You noticed a shoe print in the blood (Show Photoof Shoe.Print in Blood)
Every one in the house at the time had their shoes processed to see if their shoes matched
the bloody foot print left at the scene.

None of the witnesses’ shoes matched the print in the blood

You can assume that the print was left by one of the robbers

Eventually you arrested Ricky

You tested his shoes

None of the shoes at Ricky house matched the ones that left the print did they

You had the house processed for finger prints
You did not find Ricky’ finger prints at the scene did you

You had the house processed for DNA — Hair fibers
In fact none of Ricky’s DNA was left at the scene

The person who shot Ivan Young did so at pretty close range

You might expect there to be blood spatter on the shooter perhaps
When you arrested Ricky you tested his skin for blood spatter
You did not find any blood evidence on Ricky
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You tested his clothes for blood spatter

You did not find any of Ivan’s blood on any of Ricky’s clothes did you

You tested Ricky’s car for Ivan’s blood

You would agree with me that Ricky’s car was messy (Introduce Picture of-the Can)
No evidence of Ricky or anyone for that matter, cleaning the car

The person who stepped in Ivan’s blood at 2612 Glory View, you think they were in
Ricky’s car that day correct

Destiny Wadday said the suspects left in a Green Pontiac Grand AM

Ivan’s Blood was on the bottom of one of the robber’s shoes

You found no evidence of Ivan’s BLOOD in Ricky’s car did you

At Ricky’s home you didn’t find a Dreadlock wig did you

You didn’t find a baseball cap did you

You didn’t find a tuxedo jacket did you

You didn’t find a brown or tan jacket did you

You didn’t find any money did you

You didn’t find Ryan Johns ATM card did you

You did find a camera didn’t you

You developed the pictures on the camera

There was nothing of any evidentiary value on the camera was there

According to your report, written June 30, 2004, you were contacted by Det. Devore of
LVMPD.

He informed you that he had received information from a reliable confidential informant.
A snitch

This snitch gives the police information and in return he receives favorable treatment
from the police or district attorney’s office

He might get warrants quashed

He might get felony cases dismissed ’

He is certainly a person who is in the criminal justice system

He is a criminal

In fact this particular snitch had been assisting the government for over a year (pg5)

All this information was given for the government forgiving his outstanding warrants.
His warrants could have been for traffic tickets

His warrants could have been for felony cases

This particular snitch was a fairly hard core criminal

Well he had previously snitched and his information led to the arrest of two suspects
wanted for two separate armed robberies.

This would have been the third

He probably was not the kind of upstanding citizen who was working off a traffic ticket
So in essence you were taking information from one criminal and arresting other
criminals.

And as a reward for his being a snitch — he was atlowed to continue his criminal activity
here in Clark County.

You decided what criminal activity in Clark County would be forgiven and what criminal
activity would be prosecuted

You got to play Judge and Jury
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Another person you chose to believe during your investigation was Jacquan Richard
(Show Booking Photd)

Jacquan Richard is a gang member known as MACK - correct

Jaquan Richard was a felon at the time you were interviewing him in 2004

In fact the first time you spoke with him he was in the detention center

He told you that his girl Cheryl Brown drove him over to Ricky’s house

Later when you spoke to Cheryl Brown she told you she never took him to Ricky’s house

He told you that while he was at Ricky’s house — Ricky had to leave to pick up his girl
Jacquan said it was after seven p.m.,

But that couldn’t be right because we know the robbery happened at 7:11p.m.

We know that according to you, you believe that Tiffany was picked up @ 7:30

So according to you Ricky committed this robbery on Glory View — Near Rancho and
CraigRd at 7:11 pm

Then drove to his apartment over 10 miles away

During that drive he dropped off another person

Disposed of a wig and other evidence

Went inside his apartment and had this conversation with Jacquan

Made several admissions to Jacquan

Then noticed the time and left Jacquan in his apartment and left to pick up Tiffany
According to you all this was done in less than 19 minutes

Jacquan never said he saw the money did he

He never said he saw blood on Ricky did he

He never said he saw the ATM card that was taken did he

He never saw a dreadlock wig

He never mentioned that Ricky or the other guy were talking in a Jamaican accent

Jacquan too received preferential treatment in Justice Court in response to information he
provided you

He was allowed to continue his criminal activity

Today Jaquan Richard in on Federal Probation

He is currently on probation for being an Ex — Felon in possession of a firearm

He, as an Ex-Felon was carrying a 9MM hand gun and ammunition
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11 Tom Winters

A few days after the robbery officer Hoyt received a call from a man named Tom Winters
Tom Winters is not a man trying to work off warrants or criminal activity is he

He is a local businessman

He owns and rents out homes in Clark County

He was a good Samaritan

He informed you that he knows a man named Eric Hawkins

He informed you that Eric Hawkins was a suspect in the same type of home invasion
robberies that occurred at 2612 Gory View

He told you that Eric Hawkins owns a green Chevy Malibu

Destiny Waddy said she saw the suspects drive away in a Green Pontiac Grand Am
Pontiac and Chevy are both made by General Motors

He also told you that Eric Hawkins commits these crimes with his brother in law
He told you that Eric Hawkigs speaks with a Jamaican accent

The Jamaican accent was not public knowledge was it

It took you over a month to even call Eric Hawkins didn’t it

You only spoke to him on the phone

Eric remembered that on June 26, 2004 he was at his Grandmothers house for a party
You then called his Grand mother

His Grandmothers last name is Christmas isn’t it

Christmas is a popular Jamaican last name isn’t it

She informed you that Eric was with her all day and all night

You never met with Eric Hawkins personally did you

You never went to his house and asked him if you could see his shoes to try to match
them to the bloody print did you

You never got a search warrant to search his home did you
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You never bothered to look inside his Green Chevy Malibu for DNA or the blood did you
You never even took a photo of the Green Chevy Malibu

" So Destiny Waddy the only person to see the suspects drive away never got the
opportunity to see the Green Chevy Malibu did she

She never had the opportunity to compare that car to the car she saw drive away on June
26, 2004 did she

You never made a photo line up with Eric Hawkins photo in it to show to anyone at 2612
Glory View on June 26, 2004 did you

So none of them got the opportunity to compare Eric Hawkins to the Suspects
You never inquired about Eric Hawkins’® brother in law did you
You never spoke to him

You never drafted a report about him did you
You never got a photo of him

You never showed his photo to anyone at 2612 Glory View

You never searched his home

You never compared his shoe to the print left at the scene did you
You never bothered to get his DNA did you

You never inquired about his alibi did you

LN

Detective you have triangulated a cell phone before haven’t you.
Triangulation is a way to tell where a person has been by tracking their cell phone
As we move about Clark County our phones will “hit” off the various cell towers

So if you have a person’s cell phone number, you can tell where they have been by
obtaining their records.

You can tell where they have moved to and from
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If one makes a call you can almost pinpoint their exact location at the time the call was
made

You had Ricky’s cell phone

You never attempted to triangulate Ricky’s whereabouts on June 26, 2004 did you

1 Tiffany Johnson

You are about 6ft 5 inches

You are an experienced Detective

Tiffany Johnson — She is about 5° 57

So she is about a foot smaller than you

You are an imposing figure over her

She was only 19 years old in 2004 correct

She and Ricky had a child together

When you first spoke with Tiffany Johnson it was about 1 a.m. on June 28, 2004
About 30 hours after the robbery at Glory View

You recorded that conversation (PH Pg 107 In 17)

She had no idea that you were coming over that night

She had no time to prepare to meet with you

She was a student

She was learning to be a medical tech and billing clerk

She wore scrubs

She had to use gloves for her classes

You spoke with her

She initially told you that Ricky picked her up at 7:00 p.m. on June 26, 2004

She told you that she thought she got off about 5 minutes early

She knows this because she had to clock in and out

She worked at the Eldorado cleaners

The Eldorado Cleaners was on the comer of Nellis and Bonanza

It was in a shopping center

The shopping center at the time had Albertsons as the main or anchor tenant

So it was a pretty big strip mall

She said she waited for about 7-8 minutes for Ricky to pick her up

So that would mean that according to her first meeting with you she placed Ricky at
Bonanza and Nellis at about 7:08

The call to the North Las Vegas Police Dept regarding the robbery at Glory View was
received at exactly 7:11 p.m.

[t would take longer than three minutes to drive from 2612 Glory View to the corner of
Bonanza and Nellis wouldn’t it

Afier you took 19 year old Tiffany from her home at 1 am and interrogated her at the
north las vegas police station, you took her home

Her home had its doors blown off

Windows smashed
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The house was torn up while several officers searched the apartment

Then about an hour later you came back to her apartment and said you wanted to talk to
her again

You then took her back to the NLV police station

You interrogated her again

She was gone from her apartment for about another three hours -

She wasn’t allowed to sleep

The third time you spoke to her was July 6, 2004

You told her if she didn’t tetl you the pick up time was 7:30 she could be charged with
the exact crime as Ricky

You told her that she could lose her son

Now you don’t think she was telling you the truth about the 7:08 pick up time do you
You think it was closer to 7:30 :

~ You never bothered to go to the management of the Eldorado cleaners and get Tiffany
Johnson’s payroll sheet to see when they clocked her out did you

And

You never bothered to pull the surveillance video from the shopping center where
Tiffany Johnson worked at 1301 N. Nellis did you

Had you done so you could have confirmed the exact time she was picked up by Ricky

V. The Shoes

Now on July of 2004 you sent Ricky’s shoes to be tested
His shoes aré the white Reeboks (Show Photo of ihe.Shoes)
There is what appears to be a reddish stain on the shoes

It has been confirmed that the reddish stain is not blood is it

Nov, S C@ _
. But later, on XXKIXXX you went to another Judge and asked that judge to allow
you to get a sample of Ricky’s DNA

- You informed that judge that the reddish stain on the shoes was blood

At the time you drafted and signed that affidavit you already knew the stain on the shoe
was not blood -

You lied to the Judge in that affidavit didn’t you!

You then went to Ricky and obtained his DNA didn’t you
Ricky gave you his DNA

But nothing of value came back from that sample did it

You lied to the Judge for nothing didn’t you?

Bmng both W AFFidats
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I Prieto

L Lack of Investigation

You have been a Cop for over twenty years

You were trained in the academy

You wee taught how to write reports

You were instructed to be fair

You were instructed to be complete and through

You typed your report on June 30, 2004 — Correct.

That was four days after the Incident at 2612 Glory View
You wrote your report after you had arrested Ricky

You have reviewed your report prior to coming to court today
You have been on this case since 2004

You have probably read every report in this file

On June 26, 2004 you are dispatched over to 2612 Glory View
You were told it was a robbery
When you arrived you noted the house was in disarray
You noticed a pool of blood in the kitchen area (Show, Photo of thé Blood)
You noticed a shoe print in the blood
Every one in the house at the time had their shoes processed to see if their shoes matched
the bloedy foot print left at the scene.
. None of the witnesses’ shoes matched the print in the blood
You can assume that the print was left by one of the robbers
Eventually you arrested Ricky
You tested his shoes
None of the shoes at Ricky house matched the ones that left the print did they

In fact none of Ricky’s DNA was left at the scene

The person who shot Ivan Young did so at pretty close range
You might expect there to be blood spatter on the shooter perhaps
When you arrested Ricky you tested his skin for blood spatter
You did not find any blood evidence on Ricky
You tested his clothes for blood spatter
You did not find any of Ivan’s blood on any of Ricky’s clothes did you
You tested Ricky’s car for Ivan’s blood
You would agree with me that Ricky’s car was messy (latroduce Picture'of the Car)
No evidence of Ricky or anyone for that matter, cleaning the car
The person who stepped in Ivan’s blood at 2612 Glory View, you think they were in
Ricky’s car that day correct
Destiny Wadday said the suspects left in a Green Pontiac Grand AM
Ivan’s Blood was on the bottom of one of the robber’s shoes
You found no evidence of Ivan’s BLLOOD in Ricky’s car did you
. At Ricky’s home you didn’t find a Dreadlock wig did you
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You didn’t find a baseball cap did you

You dido’t find a tuxedo jacket did you

You didn’t find a brown or tan jacket did you

You didn’t find any money did you

You didn’t find Ryan Johns ATM card did you

You did find a camera didn’t you

You developed the pictures on the camera

There was nothing of any evidentiary value on the camera was there

According to your report, written June 30, 2004, you were contacted by Det. Devore of
LVMPD.

He informed you that he had received information from a reliable confidential informant.
A snitch
This snitch gives the police information and in return he receives favorable treatment
from the police or district attorney’s office

He might get warrants quashed

He might get felony cases dismissed

He is certainly a person who is in the criminal justice system

He is a criminal

In fact this particular snitch had been assisting the government for over a year (pg5)

All this information was given for the government forgiving his outstanding warrants.
His warrants could have been for traffic tickets

His warrants could have been for felony cases

This particular snitch was a fairly hard core criminal

Well he had previously snitched and his information led to the arrest of two suspects
wanted for two separate armed robberies.

This would have been the third

He probably was not the kind of upstanding citizen who was working off a traffic ticket
So in essence you were taking information from one criminal and arresting other
criminals.

And as a reward for his being a snitch — he was allowed to continue his criminal activity
here in Clark County.

You decided what criminal activity in Clark County would be forgiven and what criminal
activity would be prosecuted

You got to play Judge and Jury

II. Tom Winters

A few days after the robbery officer Hoyt received a call from a man named Tom Winters
Tom Winters is not a man trying to work off warrants or criminal activity is he

He is a local businessman
He owns and rents out homes in Clark County

He was a good Samaritan
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He informed you that he knows a man named Eric Hawkins

He informed you that Eric Hawkins was a suspect in the same type of home invasion
robberies that occurred at 2612 Gory View .

He told you that Eric Hawkins owns a green Chevy Malibu

Destiny Waddy said she saw the suspects drive away in a Green Pontiac Grand Am
Pontiac and Chevy are both made by General Motors

He also told you that Eric Hawkins commits these crimes with his brother in law
He told you that Eric Hawkim speaks with a Jamaican accent

It took you over a month to even call Eric Hawkins didn’t it

You only spoke to him on the phone

Eric remembered that on June 26, 2004 he was at his Grandmothers house for a party
You then called his Grand mother

His Grandmothers last name is Christmas isn’t it

Christmas is a popular Jamatican last name isn’t it

She informed you that Eric was with her all day and all night

You never met with Eric Hawkins personally did you

You never went to his house and asked him if you could see his shoes to try to match
them to the bloody print did you

You never got a search warrant to search his home did you
You never bothered to look inside his Green Chevy Malibu for DNA or the blood did you
You never even took a photo of the Green Chevy Malibu

So Destiny Waddy the only person to see the suspects drive away never got the
opportunity to see the Green Chevy Malibu did she

She never had the opportunity to compare that car to the car she saw drive away on June
26, 2004 did she
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You never made a photo line up with Eric Hawkins photo in it to show to anyone at 2612
Glory View on June 26, 2004 did you

So none of them got the opportunity to compare Eric Hawkins to the Suspects
You never inquired about Eric Hawkins’ brother in law did you
You never spoke to him

You never drafted a report about him did you
You never got a photo of him

You never showed his photo to anyone at 2612 Glory View
You never searched his home
You never compared his shoe to the print left at the scene did you

You never bothered to get his DNA did you
You never inquired about his alibi did you

—
Detéctive you have triangulated a cell phone before haven’t you.

Triangulation is a way to tell where a person has been by tracking their cell phone
As we move about Clark County our phones will “hit” off the various cell towers

So if you have a person’s cell phone number, you can tell where they have been by
obtaining their records.

You can tell where they have moved to and from

If one makes a call you can almost pinpoint their exact location at the time the call was
made

You had Ricky’s cell phone

You never attempted to triangulate Ricky’s whereabouts on June 26, 2004 did you

I1I.  Tiffany Johnson

You are about 6ft 5 inches
You are an experienced Detective
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Tiffany Johnson — She is about 5° 5

So she is about a foot smaller than you

You are an imposing figure over her

She was only 19 years old in 2004 correct

She and Ricky had a child togehter

When you first spoke with Tiffany Johnson it was about 1 a.m. on June 28, 2004
About 30 hours after the robbery at Glory View

You recorded that conversation (PH Pg 107 In 17)

She had no idea that you were coming over that night

She had no time to prepare to meet with you

She was a student

She was learning to be a medical tech and billing clerk

She wore scrubs

She had to use gloves for her classes

You spoke with her

She initially told you that Ricky picked her up at 7:00 p.m. on June 26, 2004

She told you that she thought she got off about 5 minutes early
-She knows this because she had to clock in and out

She worked at the Eldorado cleaners

The Eldorado Cleaners was on the corner of Nellis and Bonanza

It was in a shopping center

The shopping center at the time had Albertsons as the main or anchor tenant

So it was a pretty big strip mall

She said she waited for about 7-8 minutes for Ricky to pick her up

So that would mean that according to her first meeting with you she placed Ricky at
Bonanza and Nellis at about 7:08

The call to the North Las Vegas Police Dept regarding the robbery at Glory View was
received at exactly 7:11 p.m.

It would take longer than three minutes to drive from 2612 Glory View to the corner of
Bonanza and Nellis wouldn’t it

After you took 19 year old Tiffany from her home at 1 am and interrogated her at the
north las vegas police station, you took her home

Her home had its doors blown off

Windows smashed

The house was torn up while several officers searched the apartment

Then about an hour later you came back to her apartment and said you wanted to talk to
her again

You then took her back to the NLV police station

You interrogated her again

She was gone from her apartment for about another three hours

She wasn’t allowed to sleep

The third time you spoke to her was July 6, 2004

You told her if she didn’t tell you the pick up time was 7:30 she could be charged with
the exact crime as Ricky

You told her that she could lose her son

Now you don’t think she was telling you the truth about the 7:08 pick up time do you
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You think it was closer to 7:30

You never bothered to go to the management of the Eldorado cleaners and get Tiffany
Johnson’s payroll sheet to seec when they clocked her out did you

And

You never bothered to pull the surveillance video from the shopping center where
Tiffany Johnson worked at 1301 N. Nellis did you

Had you done so you could have confirmed the exact time she was picked up by Ricky
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Rickie Slaughter | 1
Case #C204957

Nevada Investigative Group, LLC
PILB#1496
8414 W. Farm Rd #180-505
Lag Vegas, NV 89131
(702) 296-5005

Case Investigation

Case #(204957 / Rickie Slaughter :
- ~ Attorney/Client

‘Date:04/26/11 ' Privilege

Times: $:30am - 2:30pm

Locations: See details

Persons Invoived: Ira Shirvani
715 N. Nellis
Las Vegas, Nevada 89103

Investigator Craig Retke

Synopsis:
On the above date and time, an investigation was conducted regarding the shopping complex in the 700 block of
North Nellis. Subpoenas were also served at several locations in the Las Vegas valley.

Details:

Subpoenas were prepared by Attorney Osvaldo Fumo and I served them at Fox 5 News station located at 25
TV5 Drive, Henderson, Nevada. Another Subpoena was served at 3355 S. Vallgy View Boulevard Las Vegas,
Nevada. Another Subpoena was served at 1500 Foremaster Lane Las Vegas, Nevada.

At approximately 12:30 pm, I contacted Ira Shirvani, the new owner of Eldorado Cleaners located at 715 N.

. Nellis Las Vegas, Nevada. I explained to Shirvani that I would like to talk to the previous owner, Sharon Sineas
and her son Jeff Arbuckle. Shirvani stated he purchased the cleaners from Sineas on 11/17/08 and has not seen
her since that date. Shirvani stated that Arbuckle is a bad individual and was in constant trouble and getting put
in jail. Shirvani has not seen Arbuckle since the time he was buying the store. I asked Shirvant if the store had
surveillance cameras installed when he bought the store and he stated they didn't.

An overview of the entire strip mall complex at 700 N. Nellis reveals that now opposed to 2004, that only three
businesses exist out of ten. Eldorado Cleaners, a Thai restaurant and a State of Nevada Welfare office where an
Albertsons once was located. I attempted to talk to the owners of the Thai restaurant but they were not in and
the two male employees inside were very uncooperative. Numerous photographs were taken of the area and
surrounding businesses. No surveillance cameras were located, on the tops of the roofs, under the eaves or
coming from inside the businesses pointed towards the complex. (see photographs).
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PROSECUTOR PRACTICE: Witnesses often get paid, shocklng
defense community

Defénse attorneys say $50 led woman to change testimony

fjr'B‘y‘ACARm.’GEERrTHE%on
[AS VEGAS REVIEW JOURNA!

When Rodkesha Thnmas received $50 cash last year from the Clark County district attorney s
office, the crack addict had one thing on her mind: getting high.

And that was all the incentive she needed to lie for the prosecution at a robbery trial four days
later.

Prosecutors say they routinely pay a $25 fee, plus mileage, to any witness who meets wlthﬁthem
before trial. That news shocked members of the defense community, who argue that the practice
violatas the law and could be vlolatmg their clients’ rights

-"There are pecple who are broke, or who are homeiess, or who are drug addicts who need a fix,
and far whom $50 could potentially alter their testimony,” Clark County Public Defender Philip Kohn
sald. "And for that reason, we should know about payments so we can ask them that guestion and
the jury can make that determination: Did $50 change or influence their testimony?"

g

Defense attorneys Danie! Bunin and Dayvid Figler said they didn't know about the pretrial -
payments untl] they met with Thomas in January at the Las_._tyegas Detention Center.

The 23-year-old woman told them she had testified falsely against their client, robbery suspect
Thad Aubert, after a Clark County prosecutor had handed her an envelope with $50 cash,

Bunin and Figler were skeptical at first. But a few days after they met with Thomas, Deputy District
Attorney Michelle Fleck confirmed on the witness stand that her office had pald the woman for
attending a pretrial conference.

"And we always do that with every witness when they come for pretrials," Fleck testified.
Aubert's lawyers have spread the word ever since.

"We started asking all these defense attorneys, and nobody knew about Et{" Bunin said.
Assistant District Attorney Christopher Lalli said his office makes no secret of the payments.

Lalii, who joined the district attorney's office 15 years ago, said Clark County prosecutors have
been paying witnesses to attend private pretrial meetings as long as he has worked there. There's
no reason defense lawyers can't do the same, he said.
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"I think the statute allows and/or requires It," he said.

Special Public Defender David Schieck said Lalli must say that because he can't interpret the law
one way for the prosecution and another way for the defense.

"Sometimes when we go out and even try to interview witnesses, we get accused of witness
tampering," he said.

Other defense attorneys expressed similar sentiments.

“If the shoe was on the other foot, they would put us in jall for something Ilke that," Assistant
Federal Public Defender David Anthony said.

According to Nevada law, a witness is entitled to a $25 fee “for attending the courts of this state in
any criminal case, or civil suit or proceeding before a court of record, master, commissioner, justice
of the peace, or before the grand Jury, in abedience to a subpoena,”

Numerous defense lawyers interviewed for this article, as well as a staff attoerney with the American
Civil Liberties Union of Nevada, said the statute clearly applies to court dppearances -- not private
meetings with prosecutors, '

A Clark County judge has said prosecutors are interpreting the law incorrectly.

But Lalli, head of the ofﬁce'S'crIminal division, pointed to a section of the statute that says
witnesses are to be paid the fee "for each day's attendance, including Sundays and holidays."

Courts don't meet on Sundays and holidays, Lalli said. "That's when people are preparing for
triais,”

Records show that the Victim Witness Assistance Center, a unit within the district attorney's office,
paid out nearly $652,000 in witness fees in fiscal-2008. About one-third of that money went to law
enforcement agencies. The rest went to lay witnesses,

The records do not differentiate between fees paid for court appearances and fees paid for pretrial
conferences. ®

"I don't really make a big distinction between those two things in my mind," Lalli said.
To him, all the uproar over a $25 fee is much ado about nothing.

" "Some suggestion that someone is going to come in and perjure themselves for $25 is somewhat -
ludicrous to me," he said. '

But testimony in the Aubert case suggests that's exactly what Thomas did.

Thomas testified for the prosecution in 2008 at Aubert's first trial, which ended in a hung jury.
Bunin and Figler were appointed to represent him at his retrial, which ended in February with an
acquittal, Thomas exercised her Fifth Amendment right against self-incrimination at the second trial
and did not testify.

While preparing for the retrial, Bunin and Figler met with Thomas, who was held at the Las Vegas
jall in a prostitution case. Thomas told them she lied at Aubert's first trial because she was afraid of
the prosecutors and because they gave her money, Bunin said.
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When Fleck conﬁrméd the $50 payment in court, Bunin and Figler asked District Judge Michael
viilani to dismiss their client's case based on prosecutorial misconduct. The next day, Feb. 3, Villani
heard testimony on the issue. :

Thomas test‘ified again during the evidentiary hearing, describing how an investigator with the
district attorney's office found her before Aubert's first trial at a crack house in downtown Las
Vegas.

Accordin{; to testimony at the evidentiary hearing, she met with Fleck a few days later and walked
away. with $50 cash, which included a $25 witness fee and $25 for a taxi. She received a separate
$25 payment for testifying at Aubert's first trial.

At the February hearing, Thomas said she recently had met with representatives of the district
attorney's office, including Fleck, at the jall and told them she was changing her story about the
robbery. :

"Why did you tell them that you lied the last tirﬁe?" Figler asked her,
"just so 1 could get out of the office and gét my money and go smoke crack," Thomas replied.

"And you're saying that the $50 cash that was given to you was used for what purpose?” Figler
asked.

"I wanted to go buy some dope," said Thomas, who admitted she was high during a pretrial
conference with Fleck last year and when she testified at the trial four days later.

Although the word "taxi" was written on a voucher for the $50 payment to Thomas, she testified
she didn't need a taxi because her boyfriend had taken her to the meeting.

Records show that the Victim Witness Assistance Center made mileage payments totaling about
$299,000 in fiscal 2008. This fiscal year, the center has a $1.7 mitlion budget to cover all witness
fees and travel expenses.

Villan! ultimately denled the motion to dismiss Aubert's case, but he ruled that the statute
pertaining to witness fees "does not apply to a pretrial conference.” The ruling applied only to the
robbery case and will have no immediate effect on future payments.

Bunin is considering pursuing the issue in federal court,

"We're iooking into options," Bunin said. "t's possible that our client's civil rights were violated
when the information about the payment wasn't disclosed prior to trial last year.”

Lalli said the statute provides a "modest way" of reimbursing witnesses who often must take time
off work to meet with prosecutors. Without the payments, "we would have situations where
witnesses would be unable to talk to us before court proceedings, and I'm sure that's something
the defense would like."

Defense lawyers also have to prepare their witnesses, Kohn said. "We just don't pay them, because
the law doesn't allow it." :

Figler said witnesses often hesitate to speak to defense attorneys in criminal cases. "Had we known
there was this option of compensating them in cash for the inconvenience of coming into our office,
maybe moré might have come in, especially those to whom $50 is a lot of money."
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But Figler and Buhin both said the law doesn't permit that. "Especially without disclosure,” Figler
added.

Kohn and other defense attorneys also guesticned whether prosecutors are paying witnesses for
multiple pretrial meetings.

To that Lalli responded, "I don't think we've got rogue prosecutors out there who are doing this.“l"'

\

And Assistant Federal Public Defender Michael Pescetta yvondered aloud whether prosecutors ever
withhoid fees for witnesses who show up for pretrial meetings and fail to provide infermation that
helps the prosecution.

Kohn doesn't believe that paying witness fees for pretrial conferences is a good use of public funds.
But he said the Nevada Supreme Court may have to settle the more important question of whether
Clark County prosecutors have been following the faw.

“The whole judicial process is built on the concept th at the truth will come out under Cross-
examination and through the adversary system. And if we don't have all the information to develop
a proper cross-examination ... that robs the jury of crucial information upon which they can derive
their verdict." ™ . )

Contact Carrl Geer Thevenot at cgeer @reviewjournal.com or 702-380-8135.
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GAMAGE & GAMAGE

5580 So. Fort Apache Rd., Suite 110
Las Vegas, Nevada 85148

Tel: (702) 386-9529

Fax: (702) 382-9525

}

Amy M. Gamage
William H. Gamage

September 4, 2013
Via First Class Mail

Rickie Slaughter

Offender No. 85902

High Desert State Prison

P.O. Box 650

Indian Springs, NV 89070-0650

Dear Mr. Slaughter:

We are in receipt of your letters -dated July 29, 2013. Please find your opening brief
enclosed.

Every prosecutorial misconduct argument that you wanted is in the brief, fiifyougwordsy
HoWever mweldidinaveiorcutintorportionstofiyourarginiienty These cuts were necessary to get in
everything we wanted in the opening brief. Editing is a part of the writing process. The quote
from State v. Long and the statistics from the Innocence Clinic take up nearly 4 pages, each
identification had to be laid out in the facts and scrutinized in the argument, and the video needed
to be fleshed out as two completely separate issues.

We believe that the videotape and the statements by prosecutors regarding it were -
ridiculous. We do not see what it was probative of.

When one considers the source of the identifications, it raises a serious problem. We also
believe Young's physical condition, the fact that John immediately had a coat put around his
head, Posada’s age, the fact that Means would not make an identification at trial, and that none of
the other witnesses made identifications makes cast serious doubt onto the reliability of those
who made identifications. Hopefully, State v. Long and the Innocence Clinic statistics will drive
this point home to the court.

We understood your letter to mean that you wanted this office to use our professional
discretion to decide which claims to bring aside from those you specifically wanted included.
We do not feel that it is in your best interest to bring Batson (not members of your race), Actual
Innocence (no new evidence), the 4™ Amendment issue (no standing), the Brady issue regarding
the unmarked photo lineups {courts see this as a police procedure issue and not a Prosecutorial
withholding of evidence), the coercion of Tiffany (proper for cross-examination), and judicial
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bias (another district court judge ruled). We believe that bringing any of these claims will hurt
the credibility of the solid claims that we have brought before the court.

We hope you are satisfied with the brief. If there is something that you specifically want
to get in our reply to the state’s response, then send me 5-10 pages and I will do my best to work

them in. Should you have any questions or concerns, please contact me.

Sincerdly,

William H. Gamag
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Slaughter, Rickie | 1
. Case # C204957 |

Nevada Investigative Group, LLC
PILB#1496
8414 W. Farm Rd #180-303
Las Vegas, NV 89131
(702) 296-5005

Case Investigation

Case # C204957 / Rickie Slaughter .
Attorney/Client —

Date: 02/21, 23 and 25/2011 5 Privilege

Times: See details -

Location: Telephonic (702) 782-9807

Persons Involved: Noyan Monique Westbrook
218 Stanely St.
Malvern, Arkansas 72104
Cell Phone #702-782-9807

Investigator Craig Retke

Synopsis: )

On 02/21/11 at 7:40am (PST) I interviewed Monique Westbrook via telephone after she contacted me in
reference to the message I left her on her Facebook account. This report also includes details of further
investigation.

Details:

Monique Westbrook was very pleasant during our interview and explained the events that occurred on or before.
06/26/04 between Rickie Slaughter and herself.

Westbrook stated she was with Slaughter at her friend's house, Shanika Brass, 511 N. Lamb #3 Las Vegas,
Nevada in the Vera Johnson Housing complex. Westbrook stated she was there in the early part of the day but
could not pinpoint which day or exact time. Westbrook said she was drinking and smoking Marijuana with
Slaughter. Westbrook remembered Brass had a boyfriend with her at her house when she was there with
Slaughter but did not remember his name.

Westbrook stated Slaughter and her left Brass's apartment and went to the motel or the daily, weekly rental
rooms next to the State of Nevada Welfare office which is located at 3700 E. Charleston, Las Vegas, Nevada.
Westbrook could not exactly say what time or exact day this occurred.
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I asked Westbrook if she would be available to testify if needed and she stated she would. I explained to her I
would like to consult with Attorney Fumo and call her back and asked her if she would be available for a
telephone conference. Westbrook advised to call her anytime.

On 02/23/11, a telephone conference was conducted with Monique Westbrook, Attorney Fumo and myself,
During this interview Westbrook was still unable to say the exact date and time that Slaughter and herself were
together. On this same date , a CCDC visit was conducted with Rickie Slaughter, Attorney Marcello and myself
and he was advised of the interview with Westbrook. Slaughter was also advised that Subpoena service was
completed at the Las Vegas Housing Authority and the Las Vegas Metropohtan Police Department (Custodian
of Records). L

LN o .
On 02/25/11, I went to the Vera Johnson Housing complex'at 511 N. Lamb #3 Las Vegas, Nevada in an attempt
1q see if Shameka Brass or any of her relatives were still staying at the apartment. | knocked on the front door-
and 1mmed1ately above me in the second floor window, an unidentified black female adult pushed open the
screen covering the window and asked what I wanted. I explained to her that I was looking for Shanieka Brass.
She stated that Shanieka was the previous resident but she hasn't been there in a couple years. I asked her if she
knew where she might be and she said she heard she was living on the West side in the , "Coast”. (this complex
is located between Washington Ave. and Treeline and extends East from M.L K. Boulevard to H Street to the
East It is also a Las Vegas Housing Authority property. The Subpoena served on the LVHA should
determine her address.)

Investigation is continuing.

Craig Retke
Nevada Investigative Group LLC
PILB #1496
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Monique Westbrook

Please State your name for the record.
Please spell you last name

Monique please tell the jury where you live today
Arkansas

Do you remember a man by the name of Ricky Slaughter .
YES

How do you know him
We had a brief relationship

When is the last time you saw Mr. Slaughter
June of 2004

Do you recall where is was that you last saw him
Yes at my friend Shamika Brass’ house — We were-roomates

Where did Shamika Brass live in June of 2004
Shamika and 1 lived together at the Vera Johnson Manor — The
Rogish on Bonanza and Lamb

How long did you live at the Vera Johnson Manor
1 lived at the Vera Johnson Manor — on and off — from the time I was
17 until I turned 23

So you lived there about 6 years.
Yes

Can you tell the jury about the last time you saw Mr. Slaughter
It was a Weekend Saturday — Sunday it was Saturday June 26, 2004

How do you know specifically that it was Saturday June 26, 2004

I know the date because a few days after we were together I did not
hear from Ricky any more, I was surprised but then an investigator came to
see me and told me Ricky had been'arrested,
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Have you seen him since that date in 2004
No

Do you recall the time of day it was
We got together around 4pm. Dusk. He came to my house at Vera
Johnson Manor. We then walked over to Shamika’s house.

Where did Shamika Brass live on June 26, 2004
We lived together at the Vera Johnson Manor. Bonanza and Lamb

Do you recall if anyone else was at Shamika Brass’ house on June 26, 2004
Yes. Her baby daddy Charles McKeller was there too.

Are you and Shamika Brass still friends today
Yes — we still talk on the phone. When I come to Vegas 1 still see her.

How long did you and Ricky stay at Shamika Brass’ house
We were there until around 7 p.m.

What happened at 7 p.m.
Ricky left very quickly — He said he had to go.

How do you know it was exactly at 7 p.m.

Idon’t know it was at exactly 7 p.m. I just remember that it was dark
outside when he left. It was Dusk. Iremember that we watched a movie
together and then had sex. We were together for at least 3 hours.

Have you ever driven with Ricky in his car.
Yes

Do you recall what kind of car he drove
Yes, it was a green car. I believe it was a green Ford Tarus

Do you recall anything specific about the car.

The only thing I remember about his car was that he was always
under the hood. I couldn't tell you what he was doing but it seemed like
every time we were in it he would have to pull over and do something to the
engine. I think he had to add water. '

[ ——
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Did you see Ricky again after that Saturday night
Yes he came over the next day around 11 am We were together until
about 11 pm

Did you ever see Ricky after Sunday June 27, 2004
No, not until I walked into the court room today.

In the brief period that you know Ricky, did you ever see him with a gun
NO

In the brief period that you knew Ricky did you ever see him with a man
with a Jamaican accent
NO
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
JONATHAN VANBOSKERCK
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #006528

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

CLERK OF THE COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-vs- CASENO:  04C204957
Eﬁf EllcEklseLf\ gggg];lg #1896569 DEPTNO: 1T
Defendant.

STATE’S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT’S PRO PER
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

DATE OF HEARING: JUNE 4, 2015
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through JONATHAN VANBOSKERCK, Chief Deputy District Attorney,
and hereby submits the attached Points and Authorities in Response to Defendant’s Pro Per
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.

This response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

/
/
/
/!
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On September 28, 2004, the State filed an Information charging RICKIE
SLAUGHTER, aka Rickie L. Slaughter (“Defendant”) with Conspiracy to Commit

Kidnapping, Conspiracy to Commit Murder, Attempt Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon,
Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon, Attempt Robbery with Use of a Deadly Weapon,
Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon, Burglary While in Possession of a Firearm, Burglary,
First Degree Kidnapping With Use of a Deadly Weapon, and Mayhem. On April 4, 2005,

Defendant entered into a Guilty Plea Agreement, wherein he agreed to plead guilty to one

count of Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon, one count of Robbery With Use of

a Deadly Weapon, one count of First Degree Kidnapping, and one count of First Degree
Kidnapping With Use of a Deadly Weapon. On August 31, 2005, Defendant was sentenced
to a maximum term of imprisonment of 480 months with a minimum parole eligibility of 180
months.

On August 7, 2006, Defendant filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. The district
court denied Defendant’s Petition on December 18, 2006. The Findings of Fact, Conclusions
of Law and Order was filed on January 29, 2007. On January 11, 2007, Defendant filed a
Notice of Appeal. On July 24, 2007, the Nevada Supreme Court found that Defendant had
entered into the Guilty Plea Agreement unknowingly, and granted Defendant a new trial.

Defendant’s jury trial commenced on May 12, 2011. On May 20, 2011, the jury found
Defendant guilty of Conspiracy to Commit Kidnapping, Conspiracy to Commit Robbery,
Attempt Murder with Use of a Deadiy Weapon, Battery With a Deadly Weapon, Attempt
Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon, Robbery With Use of a Deadly Weapon, Burglary
While in Possession of a Deadly Weapon, Burglary, First Degree Kidnapping with Use of a
Deadly weapon. On October 16, 2912, Defend'ant was sentenced to multiple life sentences.

On October 24, 2012, Defendant filed a Notice of Appeal. The Nevada Supreme Court
affirmed the Judgment of Conviction on March 12, 2014. Remittitur issued on April 30, 2014.
//

2
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Defendant filed the instant Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus on March 25, 2015. The
State Responds as follows.

ARGUMENT

L. Defendant Received Effective Assistance of Trial Counsel

a. Standard of Review

The Sixth Amendment to the United State Constitution provides that, “[i]n all criminal
prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right . . . to have the Assistance of Counsel for his
defense.” This court has long recognized that “the right to counsel is the right to the effective
assistance of counsel.” Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 686, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2063
(1984); see also State v. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993).

To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel a defendant must prove
he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of

Strickland. 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S. Ct. at 2063-64; see also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138, 865

P.2d at 323. Under the Strickland test, a defendant must show first that his counsel’s

representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for
counsel’s errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have
been different. 466 U.S. at 687-88, 694, 104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden v. Lvons, 100 Nev,
430,432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the Strickland two-part test).

The court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must determine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counsel was

ineffective. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011-1012 103 P.3d 32-33 (2004). “Effective

counsel does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance is ‘[w]ithin the

range of competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.”” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev.

430, 432, 537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975).

Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. Ennis
v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Trial counsel has the “immediate
and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, if any, to call,

and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 8, 38 P.3d 163, 167 (2002).

3
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When ineffective assistance of counsel claims are asserted in a petition for post-
conviction relief, the claims must be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true,

would entitle the petitioner to relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225

(1984). “Bare” and “naked” allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by
the record. Id.

b. Trial Counsel was not Ineffective for Failing to Call Witnesses

Grounds I, II, IV, V, VI & VIII of Defendant’s Petition allege that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to present the testimony of several witnesses.

Defendant first argues that counsel was ineffective for failing to call Detective Prieto
to testify at trial. Defendant argues that Detective Prieto would have been able to rebut the
testimony of Mr. Arbuckle, would have been able to produce evidence of the exculpatory
photographic lineup, would have been able to rebut testimony of Mr. Young, and would have
been able to show that the investigation in this case was poor.

Defendant argues that Detective Prieto would have been able to introduce one of Mr.
Arbuckle’s prior inconsistent statements. In Detective Prieto’s report, he states that Mr.
Arbuckle left work at 7:15 and that Defendant’s girlfriend, Ms. Johnson!, was still waiting
outside. At trial Mr. Arbuckle stated that Defendant picked Ms. Johnson up at 7:30. However,
Defendant fails to show that this statement was necessarily inconsistent with the report. The
report only indicates that he left the store at 7:15. The trial testimony shows Mr. Arbuckle
was in his car when Defendant picked up Ms. Johnson. Therefore, Mr. Arbuckle could have
left the store and waited in the car until Ms. Johnson was picked up. Had counsel called
Detective Prieto it would have supported that at the earliest Defendant arrived at 7:15. This
testimony would have conflicted with Ms. Johnson’s testimony who said that she was picked
up before 7:15. Detective Prieto was also the lead detective on this case. If counsel called
Detective Prieto, counsel would risk the detective bolstering the State’s testimony in many
other respects.,  Therefore, counsel made a strategic decision, which is virtually

unchallengeable on review, not to call Detective Prieto, and thus his performance was not

' Tiffany Johnson was the name of Defendant’s girlfriend at the time of the crime. However, Ms. Johnson has since remarried and her
last name is now Holly. In Defendant’s Petition, Ms. Johnson is referred to as Ms. Holly.

4
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deficient. See Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992); see also Ford
v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784 P.2d 951, 953 (1989).

Defendant also claims that Detective Prieto could have produced evidence concerning
an allegedly exculpatory second set of photographic lineups. However, as will be more
thoroughly discussed below, these lineups were not exculpatory, as the witnesses were not
asked to identify Defendant. As such, Detective Prieto’s testimony concerning the lineup
would have not helped Defendant’s case, and thus counsel was not ineffective for failing to
call him to testify. Defendant also claims that Detective Prieto could have rebutted Mr.
Young’s testimony that he saw a green Ford Taurus and that Defendant wore a wig during the
crime. However, during the interview conducted by Detective Prieto, Mr. Young is never
asked about this, and as such it would not have constituted a prior inconsistent statement and
would thus be inadmissible hearsay.

Defendant also asserts that Detective Prieto would have testified about his poor
investigation. However, these are all bare assertions that are without merit. Defendant nakedly
asserts that Detective Prieto failed to collect evidence, forced Ms. Johnson to change her
testimony, intentionally altered the first photographic lineup so Defendant would be identified,
and using a false statement in his affidavit. These claims are all based on Defendant’s self-
serving statements and are insufficient to establish ineffective assistance of counsel. See
Hargrove 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225.

Most importantly, Defendant cannot establish prejudice in this case. Even if counsel
erred by not calling Detective Prieto, the result of the trial would not have changed in light of
the overWhelming amount of evidence produced against Defendant. Four different witnesses
identified Defendant as the person who shot Mr. Young. Defendant was in possession of a
green Ford Taurus, which matched the description of the vehicle used by the perpetrators.
Officers searched the Ford Taurus and found guns matching the description of the guns used
in the crime, and a. 357 shell casing which was the same caliber of the weapon that Defendant
used to shoot Mr. Young in the face with. Additionally, Defendant was recorded askihg Ms.

Johnson to change her testimony and inform officers that Defendant picked her up at 7:00 p.m.

5

W:A2004FANO\BOVO4FNQ980-RSPN-(SLAUGHTER _ RICKIE)-001.DOCX

App. 1448




o o0 13 v nn L WO e

N N N N N NN NN e e e e e e e et
e 1 O W R WN—= O O N RN —= O

Defendant was also recorded talking to another man about fabricating an alibi and asking about
the guns that were found in his car. Defendant is also videotaped at a 7-11 convenience store
using an ATM card that he obtained during the robbery. In light of all this evidence the result
of the trial would have remained the same had Detective Prieto testified.

Defendant next alleges that counsel was ineffective for failing to call Officer Anthony
Bailey to testify at trial. Defendant alleges that Officer Bailey would have rebutted some of
Mr. Young’s allegedly inconsistent statements. However, Defendant’s contention is without
merit. While there were some minor inconsistencies regarding statements made by Mr. Young
during his preliminary hearing and during the trial, Mr. Young’s statements made at trial were
not inconsistent with Officer Bailey’s police report. In Officer Bailey’s police report, Mr.
Young states that the shooter had dreadlocks. See Exhibit “E” at 2. However, at trial, Mr.
Young never states what hairstyle Defendant had when he shot Mr. Young. Mr. Young only
testified that the perpetrators were wearing hats and wigs. As such, the statements made by
Mr. Young were not inconsistent with Officer Bailey’s police report and counsel’s decision
not to call him did not fall below an objective standard of reasonableness. Furthermore,
Defendant fails to demonstrate that even if these statements regarding the incqnsistencies were
admitted at trial that the result of the proceedings would have been different. While there may
have been minor inconsistencies regarding Mr. Young’s testimony he was able to identify
Defendant as the man who shot him in the photographic lineup and in open court. As such,
Defendant fails to demonstrate that the result of the proceedings would have been different
had Officer Bailey testified at trial. Accordingly, Defendant is not entitled to relief.

Defendant next alleges that counsel was ineffective for failing to call Destiny Waddy
to testify at trial. Defendant alleges that Ms. Waddy told officers that she witnessed a green
Pontiac Grand Am leaving the scene of the crime. However, the police report indicates that
she only thought it may have been a green Grand Am. Counsel made a strategic decision not
to call Ms. Waddy to testify. The State could have easily cleared up the confusion between a
Grand Am and a Ford Taurus on cross-examination. Had counsel called Ms. Waddy to testify

he may have run the risk that she could positively identify Defendant’s car as the car she saw

6
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leave the scene of the crime. As such, counsel made a strategic decision not to call Ms. Waddy,
and thus his performance did not fall below an objective level of reasonableness. Additionally,
Defendant cannot show that the results of the proceedings would have been different had Ms.
Waddy testified in light of the overwhelming amount of evidence produced against Defendant
at trial. Accordingly, Defendant’s claim must fail.

Defendant next alleges that counsel was ineffective for failing to call 911 custodians at
trial. Defendant argues that counsel was ineffective for failing to introduce 911 records
showing that J ermaun Means called 911 at 7:11 p.m. First, Defendant has not presented this
Court with any evidence showing that the 911 call was in fact made at 7:11p.m. Defendant
also fails to demonstrate how long after the incident occurred that Mr. Means decided to make
the call. Defendant only offers his self-serving statements claiming that the call waé made
“seconds” after Defendant fled the scene However, there is no support for this in the trial
transcript. Mr. Means only testifies that he called 911 sometime after the perpetrators left.
Assuming arguendo that the call was made at 7:11, there is no evidence concerning how long
Defendant was gone before the call was made. Accordingly, the evidence would not have
been helpful at trial, and counsel made a reasonable decision not to call a custodian to testify.
Additionally, as discussed above; the testimony would not have changed the outcome of the
trial because there was no timeline establishing how long Mr. Means waited to make the call.
Accordingly, Defendant is not entitled to relief.

Defendant next alleges that counsel was ineffective for failing to call defense
investigator Craig Retke to testify at trial. Defendant argues that the failure to call Mr. Retke
to testify prevented him from being able to introduce evidence regarding the amount of time
the drive took from the crime scene to Ms. Johnson’s work. Defendant fails to demonstrate
that counsel’s performance was deficient in this regard. First Defendant cannot show that this
evidence would have been admissible at trial. The relevance of how long it took Mr. Retke to
drive these routes is questionable, as he does not know if Defendant drove the speed limit, nor
could he recreate the same traffic conditions from that night. The jury was presented with

evidence stating how many miles were between the crime scene and Ms. Johnson’s work.
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Defense counsel made the strategic decision to let the jury use their own driving experiences
to figure out how long it would take to drive nearly ten miles at 7:00 p.m. Accordingly,
Defendant cannot show that counsel’s performance was deficient. Defendant also fails to
show that the result of the trial would have been different had Mr. Retke testified. As such,
Defendant’s claim must fail.

Defendant also alleges that counsel was ineffective for failing to call Officer Mark Hoyt
to testify at trial. Defendant alleges that Officer Hoyt would have been able to rebut the
testimony of Ryan John. As will be discussed more thoroughly below, Mr. John’s testimony
at trial contained slight inconsistencies from his testimony during the preliminary hearing,
Mr. John testified at the preliminary that the jacket was placed over his head before the
shooting, while at trial Mr. John testified that the jacket was placed over his head after Mr.
Young was shot. However, these minor inconsistencies did not prejudice Defendant. Mr.
John was able to identify Defendant as the perpetrator in a photographic lineup, at the

preliminary hearing, and at trial. See Reporter’s Tr. Proceedings, May 17, 2011, at 62-65.

Furthermore, Mr. John testified that he did not witness Defendant shoot Mr. Young, therefore
the timing of when the jacket was placed over Mr. John’s head did not alter the jury’s verdict
in light of the evidence presented against Defendant at trial.

Defendant also claims that Officer Hoyt would have been able to testify that he was
dispatched at 7:11 p.m., and that Destiny Waddy stated the perpetrators drove a green Pontiac
Grand Am. However, Ms. Waddy only stated that the vehicle might have been a Grand Am.
Additionally, the testimony regarding dispatch was irrelevant because Defendant has not
established how long after the crime the 911 calls were made. Accordingly, Defendant has
not demonstrated that this testimony, if admitted, would have changed the result of the trial
and is thus not entitled to relief.

c. Trial Counsel was not Ineffective for Failing to Investigate Various Issues

In Ground VII of his Petition, Defendant claims that trial counsel was ineffective for
failing to investigate Jeff Arbuckle. Specifically, Defendant argues that counsel should have

investigated Mr. Arbuckle’s criminal record, that counsel should have investigated whether

8

W:A\2004FANOS\BO\04FNO980-RSPN-(SLAUGHTER__ RICKIE)-001.DOCX

App. 1451




O o0 ] O b B WO N e

[\» [\ ) [\ () -] () ro [\ — p— —_ —_ —_ —_— —_ —_ — —_

Mr. Arbuckle was paid for his testimony, and that counsel should have investigated Mr.
Arbuckle’s personal bias towards Defendant.

Defendant’s naked allegations are without merit. Defendant first asserts that counsel
was ineffective for failing to investigate Mr. Arbuckle’s criminal record. Defendant fails to
demonstrate that Mr. Arbuckle has a criminal record, or that counsel did not search for a
criminal record. Furthermore, if Mr. Arbuckle did have a criminal record, it would have likely
been disclosed in Brady materials provided to Defendant by the State. Defendant’s naked
assertion that counsel did not conduct any investigation of Mr. Arbuckle’s criminal record

does not establish deficient performance. See Hargrove 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. As

will be discussed more thoroughly below, Defendant presents this Court with no evidence that
Mr. Arbuckle received compensation, or that his testimony was influenced by any statutory
permitted payments. Finally, Defendant asserts that counsel was ineffective for failing to
investigate Mr. Arbuckle’s personal bias towards Defendant. This claim is belied by the
record. Counsel hired a private investigator in order to locate Mr. Arbuckle. However, the
investigator was unable to locate Mr. Arbuckle. See Exhibit “K” at 1. Accordingly,
Defendant’s claim is belied by the record and he is thus not entitled to relief.

Defendant also fails to establish prejudice. Defendant fails to demqnstrate that the
results of the proceedings would have been different had counsel investigated these issues.
Defendant fails to show that Mr. Arbuckle had a criminal history, or that Mr. Arbuckle
received payments for pretrial conferences. In light of the overwhelming amount of evidence
produced against Defendant at trial, further investigation would not have changed the results

of the proceedings. As such, Defendant has failed to satisfy Strickland’s second prong and is

thus not entitled to relief.

In Ground IX of his Petition, Defendant alleges that counsel was ineffective for failing
to investigate potential impeachment material, including fees paid to State’s witnesses.
Defendant only offers naked allegations, which do not establish prejudice. Pursuant to NRS
50.225, witnesses may receive up to $25.00 per day for attending certain proceedings. Here,

Defendant alleges that counsel was ineffective for failing to investigate what money had been
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paid to witnesses in this case. Defendant has not presented this Court with any evidence that
any of the witnesses in this case received money, and as such his assertion is naked speculation

suitable only for summary rejection. See Hargrove 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225.

Moreover, even if witnesses were paid statutory fees for pre-trial conferences, the
practice was permissible since it arises out of the statutory witness fees paid for appearance in
court. As such, trial counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to investigate in this case because
any fees paid would have been pursuant to the statute and thus proper. Accordingly Defendant
cannot demonstrate that counsel’s performance fell below an objective level of reasonableness.

Defendant also fails to demonstrate that he was prejudiced by counsel’s lack of
investigation. Defendant has presented this Court with no evidence that any 'of the witnesses
attended pretrial conferences or received any payments. Defendant also cannot show that any
of the witness’s testimony was influenced by these alleged payments. As such, Defendant
cannot show that the result of the proceedings would have been different had counsel
investigated this issue. As such, Defendant is not entitled to relief.

In Ground X of the Petition, Defendant argues that counsel was ineffective for failing
to investigate and challenge the alleged illegal use of photographs. Defendant claims that he
told his attorney that he may be able to suppress the photographic lineups based on the Nevada
Supreme Court’s ruling in Somee v. State, 124 Nev. 434, 187 P.3d 152 (2008). Defendant

then dubiously claims that his counsel forced him to write a motion, which Defendant failed
to do. Defendant’s only evidence of this encounter is his own self-serving statement. This
highly implausible naked claim cannot establish ineffective assiétance of counsel. See
Hargrove 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225.

Additionally, Defendant cannot show that the result of the trial would have been
different had counsel investigated this issue. Defendant presents this Court with absolutely no
evidence that this photograph was illegally obtained. Defendant’s bare assertion cannot
establish prejudice in this case. Accordingly, Defendant is not entitled to relief.

//
//
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d. Trial Counsel was not Ineffective for Failing to Cross Examine Witnesses

Detendant asserts that counsel was ineffective for failing to effectively cross examine
certain witnesses. Specifically, Defendant argues that counsel was ineffective for failing to
cross-examine witnesses regarding the second photographic lineup, and for failing to point out
inconsistencies in eye-witness testimony. Defendant first argues that counsel was ineffective
for failing to ask witnesses questions about a second photographic lineup where there were no
notes suggesting that the witnesses identified Defendant. However, Defendant fails to
recognize that the purpose of this second lineup was to attempt to identify Jacquan Richards.
Accordingly, there was no evidence that the suspects did not identify Defendant in this lineup.
Had counsel asked these questions the witnesses may have stated that they did recognize
Defendant, especially considering the witnesses had previously identified Defendant.
Accordingly, counsel made a strategic decision not to ask these questions. As such, counsel’s
performance was not deficient. Furthermore, this would not have changed the outcome of the
trial, as the witnesses had previously identified Defendant as the shooter. |

Defendant next asserts that counsel was ineffective for failing to ask Ivan Young about
changes made between his testimony at the preliminary hearing and statements made at trial.
Defendant argues that counsel should have asked about Mr. Young’s ability to observe
Defendant, as Mr. Young stated at the preliminary hearing that he did not really pay attention
to Defendant before he pulled a gun on him. However, when Mr. Young was being asked this
question defense counsel was asking Mr. Young very specific details including whether
Defendant was wearing earrings. Defendant also claims that Mr. Young changed his testimony
several times. Officer Bailey visited Mr. Young in the hospital shortly after the crime
occurred. In a police report written by Officer Bailey, Mr. Young states that the man with
dreadlocks was the shooter. At the preliminary hearing Mr. Young stated that Defendant was
the shooter, but that Defendant did not have dreadlocks. At trial Mr. Young testified that
Defendant was the shooter, and that the perpetrators were wearing hats and wigs. While Mr.
Young’s testimony at trial may have slightly differed from the statement he made while at the

hospital recovering from his injuries Defendant cannot establish prejudice. Mr. Young
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identified Defendant in a photographic lineup and his testimony has been consistent that
Defendant was the shooter, Additionally, Defendant was identified as the shooter by three
other eyeWitnesses. Accordingly, any slight inconsistencies in Mr. Young’s testimony would
not have changed the result of the trial in light of the overwhelming evidence produced against
Defendant. As such, Defendant’s claim must fail.

Defendant also asserts that counsel was ineffective for failing to point out
inconsistencies in Ryan John’s testimony. The inconsistencies that Defendant complains of
were minor and would not have changed the outcome of the trial. Defendant complains that
Mr. John changed his testimony as to when Defendant placed a jacket over his head, thus
challenging Mr. John’s ability to perceive him. At the preliminary hearing Mr. John testified
that the jacket was placed over his head before the shooting, while at trial Mr. John testified
that the jacket was placed over his head after Mr. Young was shot. However, this testimony
was irrelevant because Mr. John never claimed to have witnessed 'the actual shooting during
the preliminary hearing or at trial. However, Mr. John was able to identify Mr. Young in a

photographic lineup and during the preliminary hearing and at trial. See Reporter’s Tr.,

Proceedings, May 17, 2011, at 62. Thus counsel was not ineffective for failing to cross
examine Mr. John on these minor inconsistencies. Additionally, counsel di.d challenge Mr.
John’s perception of Defendant pointing out the perpetrator did not have any tattoos or facial
bruising. Id. at 69. Counsel also was able to get Mr. John to admit that Defendant’s photo did
not have a blue background supporting Defendant’s theory of the case, that the photographic
lineup in which Defendant was identified was misleading. Accordingly, Defendant fails to
show that counsel’s representation fell below an objective level or reasonableness.
Additionally, Defendant fails to show that had counsel asked Mr. John more questions on
cross-examination that the result of the trial would have been different in light of the evidence
produced against Defendant at trial. As such, Defendant has failed to meet the second prong
of Strickland, and is thus not entitled to relief.

//

/f
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e. Trial Counsel was not Ineffective for Calling Noyan Westbrook as a Witness

Defendant next alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for calling Noyan Westbrook
to testify. Defendant asserts that calling Ms. Westbrook to testify hurt his case because it hurt
his credibility and opened the door to introduce jail phone recordings. Defendant’s arguments
are without merit. While Ms. Westbrook’s testimony was not able to affect the outcome of
the trial in light of the overwhelming arﬁount of evidence produced by the State, the testimony
did not damage Defendant. While Ms. Westbrook could not remember the exact time she was
allegedly with Defendant, she was able to inform the jury that Defendant never had dreadlocks,
nor spoke with a Jamaican accent. Additionally, Defendant requested that Ms., Westbrook
testify. On May 20, 2011, counsel for Defendant stated that Defendant “begged me to find
Monique Westbrook.” Reporter’s Tr. Proceedings, May 20, 2011, at 69. Accordingly,

Defendant fails to demonstrate that counsel’s performance fell below an objective standard of
reasonableness.

Defendant also fails to establish prejudice. As discussed above, Ms. Westbrook’s
testimony did not hurt Defendant’s case. She was able to testify to some facts which supported
Defendant’s case. Defendant fails to demonstrate that the result of the trial would have been
different had Ms. Westbrook not testified. As such, Defendant’s claim must fail.

II. Defendant Received Effective Assistance of Appellate Counsel

Defendant next alleges that he received ineffective assistance of appellate counsel.
Defendant first claims that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to raise a Batson
challenge. However, Defendant fails to demonstrate that counsel’s decision to not raise a
Batson challenge fell below an objective level of reasonableness. Here, appellate counsel
made a decision to only focus on strong arguments, which had a chance of success on appeal.
In a letter written by appellate counsel to Defendant, counsel explained that believed that

presenting a Batson claim would hurt his credibility and weaken Defendant’s chance of

success on appeal. See Exhibit “N” at 2. In Jones v. Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751, 103 S. Ct.

3308, 3312 (1983), the Supreme Court recognized that part of professional diligence and

competence involves “winnowing out weaker arguments on appeal and focusing on one central
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issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Id. at 751, 752, at 103 S.Ct at 3313. In
particular, a “brief that raises every colorable issue runs the risk of burying good arguments. .
. in a verbal mound made up of strong and weak contentions.” Id. at 753, 103 S.Ct at 3313,
Accordingly, counsel’s decision to not raise a Batson challenge was a strategic decision, which

is virtually unchallengeable on review. See Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596.

Additionally, Defendant cannot show that he was prejudiced by counsel’s decision to
not raise a Batson challenge. In order to demonstrate prejudice Defendant must show that that
the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Hudson v.

Ignacio, 117 Nev. 387, 393, 22 P.3d 1154, 1158 (2001). Here, any Batson challenge would

have been unsuccessful on appeal. During voir dire defense counsel raised a Batson challenge.
The court then asked the State to give a 